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Letter to Unitholders: 
 
Overall we are pleased with our results this quarter given the tough comparison to Cineplex’s and the 
industry’s record breaking third quarter in 2007 coupled with the impact of the Olympics in August 2008. The 
Dark Knight dominated the quarter but it was not enough to match the box office revenues generated by 
multiple films during the same period in 2007. 
  
Cineplex box office revenues decreased 3.6% compared to Canadian box office revenues that decreased 
approximately 4.5% this quarter versus the same period last year.  Attendance decreased 6.0% to 18.0 
million visitors compared to the same period last year.  Even though concession revenues decreased 1.2% 
to $71.5 million due to lower attendance, we generated a new record Concession per Patron of $3.98 which 
represents a 5% increase versus the same period a year ago.  Total revenues for this quarter decreased 
2.0% to $239.1 million compared to $243.9 million reported for 2007. 
 
I am pleased to report that our Other Revenue for the quarter was $22.6 million compared to $21.1 million 
reported for the same period in 2007 representing an increase of 7.4%.  This category comprises our 
Cineplex Media group as well as Games and Other Revenues.  Especially compelling is the continued 
growth from our Cineplex Media group which increased 13.1% this quarter versus the third quarter last year.   
 
As indicated in my letter to you earlier this year, our strategic focus has been to grow attendance and 
increase purchase incidence both in terms of theatre visits and concession purchases.  Our management 
team is focused on driving results from our existing business while simultaneously investing in our future 
growth via our expanding SCENE loyalty program, our Cineplex Media business, and our interactive 
business cineplex.com.  We believe this investment in our future comes with current costs that will deliver 
strong results and enhance overall revenues for the future.  As a result of this continued investment in 
growth, and certain other cost items, compounded by the decline in attendance, net income was negatively 
impacted during the quarter.  
 
Our adjusted EBITDA for the quarter was $49.1 million compared to $51.6 million for 2007 and represented 
a decrease of 5.0%.  Our distributable cash per unit of $0.6722 for the quarter was a decrease of 10.2% 
versus the same period in the prior year.  Our declared distribution per unit for this quarter was $0.3150 
versus $0.3000 for the same period in 2007.   
  
Our SCENE loyalty program continued to generate consistent membership growth reaching approximately 
1.2 million members as of September 30, 2008.  Now that we have exceeded one million members, we 
believe we will be able to expand the program further by adding new reward partners whose products and 
services are also sought after and would appeal to our SCENE members. 
 
In the fourth quarter 2008, we remain on track with our schedule to open three new theatres in the Ontario 
communities of Brantford and Hamilton, as well as Fairview Mall in Toronto.   
 
We remain positive for the balance of the year given the strong slate of films and the industry’s historical box 
office performance during difficult economic times.  Our balance sheet is strong, our credit facilities were 
renegotiated during 2007 and extended to 2012, we used excess cash to pay down debt in 2007 and we 
have hedged our interest rate risk until 2012.  Unlike many others, we do not have material exposure to 
commodity prices or foreign exchange.  I believe this positions us well during these times of economic 
uncertainty. 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors, 
 

 
 
Ellis Jacob 
President and Chief Executive Officer  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
As of September 30, 2008, Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund indirectly owned approximately 76% of Cineplex 
Entertainment Limited Partnership. The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the 
Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership financial condition and results of operations should be read 
together with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund (see 
“Overview” below).  These financial statements, presented in Canadian dollars, were prepared in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).   
 
This MD&A contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws, such as 
statements concerning anticipated future events, results, circumstances, performance or expectations that are 
not historical facts.  These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to numerous 
risks and uncertainties, including those described in our Annual Information Form (“AIF”) and in this 
MD&A.  Those risks and uncertainties include adverse factors generally encountered in the film exhibition 
industry such as poor film product and unauthorized copying; the risks associated with national and world 
events, including war, terrorism, international conflicts, natural disasters, extreme weather conditions, 
infectious diseases, changes in income tax legislation; and general economic conditions.  Many of these risks 
and uncertainties can affect our actual results and could cause our actual results to differ materially from 
those expressed or implied in any forward-looking statement made by us or on our behalf.  All forward-
looking statements in this MD&A are qualified by these cautionary statements.  These statements are made as 
of the date of this MD&A and, except as required by applicable law, we undertake no obligation to publicly 
update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or 
otherwise.  Additionally, we undertake no obligation to comment on analyses, expectations or statements 
made by third parties in respect of Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund or Cineplex Entertainment Limited 
Partnership, their financial or operating results or their securities.  Additional information, including 
Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund’s AIF, can be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.  
 
OVERVIEW 
 
        Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”) was formed on November 26, 2003 to 
acquire substantially all of the business assets of Cineplex Odeon Corporation (“COC”) and all of the shares 
of Galaxy Entertainment Inc. (“GEI”).  The Partnership’s investors include Cineplex Galaxy Trust (the 
“Trust”), Cineplex Entertainment Corporation (the “General Partner”), COC (indirectly through CELP 2007 
Limited Partnership (“CELP 2007 LP”)), Cineplex Odeon (Quebec) Inc. (“COQ”) and certain former 
investors in GEI.  The Trust is wholly owned by Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund (the “Fund”).  On July 22, 
2005 the Partnership acquired the movie exhibition business of Famous Players Limited Partnership 
(“Famous Players”), becoming Canada’s largest film exhibition operator with theatres in six provinces.  The 
Partnership’s theatre circuit is concentrated in major metropolitan and mid-sized markets, with principal 
geographic areas being Toronto, Montreal, Vancouver, Calgary, Edmonton, Ottawa and Quebec City.  As of 
September 30, 2008, the Partnership owned, leased or had a joint-venture interest in 1,317 screens in 129 
theatres, including 37 screens in four theatres held in joint ventures. 
 
 Under the provisions of an exchange agreement entered into at the time of the Fund’s initial public 
offering (as amended or restated from time to time, the “Exchange Agreement”) designed to facilitate the 
exchange of units of the Partnership (“LP Units”) into units of the Fund (“Fund Units”), the Fund issued 
174,502 Fund Units during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 in exchange for notes and units from 
the Trust.  The Trust acquired 174,502 LP Units in the exchange.  As a result, during this period the Fund 
indirectly increased its ownership in the Partnership to 76% excluding the Class C LP Units. 
 
 On April 2, 2007, under provisions of the Exchange Agreement, certain minority investing partners of 
Onex Corporation (“Onex”) exchanged 9,122,751 Class B, Series 1 and Series 2-C LP Units for 9,122,751 
Fund Units.  Prior to the April 2, 2007 exchange, the Fund accounted for the Partnership under the equity 
method.  As a result of that April 2007 exchange, the Fund acquired control of the Partnership and has 
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consolidated the Partnership since April 2, 2007.  Accordingly, the results of operations of the business 
acquired are included in the consolidated financial statements effective with the acquisition of control.  
   

The Fund’s only source of income arises from its investment in the Partnership.  As the Fund 
commenced consolidating the results of the Partnership during the second quarter of 2007, the Fund’s 
financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 do not contain historic comparative 
results for the Partnership on a line-by-line basis.  To provide meaningful commentary on the results of 
operations, the following discussion focuses on the financial statements of the Partnership which includes 
line-by-line comparative information. 

 
REVENUE AND EXPENSES 
 
Revenues 
 
 The Partnership generates revenues primarily from box office and concession sales. These revenues are 
affected primarily by attendance levels and by changes in the average box office revenue per patron and 
average concession revenue per patron.  The commercial appeal of the films and alternative content released 
during the period and the success of marketing as well as promotion for those films by film studios, 
distributors and content providers drives attendance.  Average box office revenue per patron is affected by the 
mix of film and alternative content product that appeal to certain audiences, such as children, teens or young 
adults, and ticket prices.  Average concession revenue per patron is affected by concession product mix, 
concession prices and type of film.  In addition, the Partnership generates other revenues from in-theatre 
advertising sales through its Cineplex Media business, promotional activities, website advertising sales, game 
rooms, screenings, private parties, corporate events and theatre management fees.  
 
Expenses 
 
 Film cost represents the film rental fees paid on films exhibited in the Partnership’s theatres. Film costs 
are calculated as a percentage of box office revenue and vary directly with changes in box office revenue.  
Film costs are accrued on the related box office receipts at either mutually agreed-upon terms established 
prior to the opening of the film, or on a mutually agreed settlement upon conclusion of the film’s run, 
depending upon the film licensing arrangement. 
 
 Cost of concessions represents the costs of concession items sold and varies directly with changes in 
concession revenue as well as the quantity and mix of concession offerings sold. 
 
 Occupancy costs include lease related expenses, property and business related taxes and insurance. Lease 
expenses are primarily a fixed cost at the theatre level because the Partnership’s theatre leases generally 
require a fixed monthly minimum rent payment. However, a number of the Partnership’s theatre leases also 
include a percentage rent clause whereby the landlord is paid an additional amount of rent based primarily 
upon box office revenues over a specified threshold. 
 
 Other operating expenses consist of fixed and variable expenses, including marketing and advertising, 
media, loyalty, interactive, theatre salaries and wages, utilities and maintenance.  Although theatre salaries 
and wages include a fixed cost component, these expenses vary in relation to revenues as theatre staffing 
levels are adjusted to handle fluctuations in attendance. 
 
 General and administrative expenses are primarily costs associated with managing the Partnership’s 
business, including film buying, marketing and promotions, operations and concession management, 
accounting and financial reporting, legal, treasury, construction and design, real estate development and 
administration and information systems. The Partnership’s general and administrative costs primarily consist 
of payroll, occupancy costs related to its corporate offices in Toronto, Ontario, professional fees (such as 
public accountant and legal fees) and travel and related costs. The Partnership’s management maintains 
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general and administrative staffing and associated costs at a level that it deems appropriate to manage and 
support the size and nature of its theatre portfolio and its business activities. 
 
Accounting for joint ventures 
 
 The financial statements incorporate the operating results of joint ventures in which the Partnership has 
an interest using the proportionate consolidation method as required by GAAP.  
 
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
 Management of the Fund is responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures for the Fund as defined under Multilateral Instrument 52-109 issued by the Canadian Securities 
Administrators.  Management has designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be 
designed under its supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the Fund, 
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being 
prepared.   
 
INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 
 Management of the Fund is responsible for designing internal controls over financial reporting for the 
Fund as defined under Multilateral Instrument 52-109 issued by the Canadian Securities Administrators.  
Management has designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused them to be designed 
under their supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.         
 
 There has been no change in the Fund’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the 
most recently completed interim period that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, the Fund’s internal control over financial reporting. 
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARTNERSHIP 
 
 The following Consolidated Balance Sheets for the Partnership at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 
2007, Consolidated Statements of Operations, Consolidated Statements of Partners’ (Deficiency) Equity and 
Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Partnership for the three and nine 
months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 are presented to provide comparable results to prior periods.   
 
CINEPLEX ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(unaudited) 
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

 September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007   
Assets   

   
Current assets   
Cash and cash equivalents $                21,776 $                42,906 
Accounts receivable 32,060 45,322 
Inventories 2,865 3,026 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8,215 4,584 
Due from related parties 6 6 
   
 64,922 95,844 
   
Property, equipment and leaseholds 404,731 420,884 
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements - 1,523 
Future income taxes 6,239 5,825 
Deferred charges 986 1,085 
Intangible assets 48,655 52,815 
Goodwill 200,037 200,037 
   
 $              725,570 $              778,013 
Liabilities   
   
Current liabilities   
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $                55,499 $                80,779 
Distributions payable 4,834 4,548 
Due to related parties 1,606 - 
Income taxes payable 50 65 
Deferred revenue 51,980 64,610 
Capital lease obligations - current portion 1,669 1,581 
   
 115,638 151,583 
   
Long-term debt 232,711 232,265 
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements 4,140 - 
Capital lease obligations - long term portion 33,568 34,831 
Due to Cineplex Galaxy Trust 100,000 100,000 
Accrued pension benefit liability 1,508 1,109 
Other liabilities 148,403 150,162 
Class C Limited Partnership Units - liability component 104,274 102,231 

   
 740,242 772,181 
   
Partners’ (Deficiency) Equity (14,672) 5,832 
   

 $              725,570 $              778,013 
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CINEPLEX ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(unaudited) 
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 
 

 

 Three months 
ended 

September 30, 
2008 

 Three months 
ended 

September 30, 
2007  

 Nine months 
ended 

September 30, 
2008  

 Nine months 
ended 

September 30, 
2007 

Revenue      
Box office $         144,957 $         150,376  $         388,137 $         383,329 
Concessions 71,520 72,408  190,272 184,524 
Other 22,626 21,072  59,859 54,540 
 239,103 243,856  638,268 622,393 
Expenses      
Film cost 76,212 80,057  202,850 200,379 
Cost of concessions 14,690 14,842  40,000 38,220 
Occupancy 37,320 41,205  113,357 114,860 
Other operating 52,370 46,205  144,334 130,901 
General and administrative 9,445 9,914  28,901 26,701 
 190,037 192,223  529,442 511,061 
      
Income before undernoted 49,066 51,633  108,826 111,332 
      
Amortization 16,606 16,398  50,618 49,150 
(Gain) loss on disposal of theatre assets (341) 149  1,013 3,018 
Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations 6,239 6,648  20,227 20,758 
Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust 3,500 3,500  10,500 10,500 
Interest income (216) (363)  (591) (838) 
      
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest 23,278 25,301  27,059 28,744 
      
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes      
Current - -  (4) 11 
Future 184 546  (413) 50 
 184 546  (417) 61 
      
Income before non-controlling interest 23,094 24,755  27,476 28,683 
Non-controlling interest - -  - (561) 
      
Net income $           23,094 $           24,755  $           27,476 $           29,244 
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CINEPLEX ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ (DEFICIENCY) EQUITY AND 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(unaudited) 
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 
 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 

 
 Accumulated 

earnings  

 
Accumulated 
distributions 

 Accumulated 
distributions 

in excess of 
accumulated 

earnings 

 Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income (loss) 

 
Partners’ 

capital 

 Formation 
of 

Partnership 
deficit  

 Total 
Partners'  

deficiency 

 
Comprehensive 

income 
           
Balance - December 31, 

2007 $                   84,338 $     (194,026) $      (109,688) $                 974 $ 262,341 $  (147,795) $   5,832 $                       - 
         
Distributions declared - (42,365) (42,365) - - - (42,365) - 
Investment in Cineplex 

Galaxy Income Fund 
Units - - - - (3,691) - (3,691) - 

LTIP compensation 
obligation - - - - 2,429 - 2,429 - 

Net income 27,476 - 27,476 - - - 27,476 27,476 
Other comprehensive loss - 

interest rate swap 
agreements - - - (4,353) - - (4,353) (4,353) 

Comprehensive income - - - - - - - $             23,123 
Balance – September 30, 

2008 $                 111,814 $     (236,391) $      (124,577) $           (3,379) $ 261,079 $  (147,795) $(14,672)  
 

The sum of accumulated distributions in excess of accumulated earnings and accumulated other comprehensive loss as at September 30, 2008 is $127,956. 
 
                            For the nine months ended September 30, 2007 
 

 
Accumulated 

earnings 
Accumulated 
distributions 

Accumulated 
distributions 

in excess of 
accumulated 

earnings 

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

Partners’ 
capital 

Formation 
of 

Partnership 
deficit 

Total 
Partners’ 

equity 
Comprehensive 

income 
         

Balance – January 1, 2007 $                   57,867 $     (140,405) $        (82,538) $              2,427 $ 262,774 $  (147,795) $   34,868 $                       - 
         

Distributions declared - (39,976) (39,976) - - - (39,976) - 
Investment in Cineplex 

Galaxy Income Fund 
Units - - - - (1,677) - (1,677) - 

LTIP compensation 
obligation - - - - 1,070 - 1,070 - 

Net income 29,244 - 29,244 - - - 29,244 29,244 
Other comprehensive 

income – interest rate 
swap agreements - - - 49 - - 49 49 

Comprehensive income - - - - - - - $             29,293 
Balance – September 30, 
2007 $                   87,111 $     (180,381) $      (93,270) $              2,476 $ 262,167 $  (147,795) $   23,578  

 
The sum of accumulated distributions in excess of accumulated earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income as at September 30, 2007 is $90,794. 
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CINEPLEX ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(unaudited) 
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 
 

 

 Three months 
ended 

September 30, 
2008 

 Three months 
ended 

September 30, 
2007 

 Nine months 
ended 

September 30, 
2008  

 Nine months 
ended 

September 30, 
2007 

 Cash provided by (used in)      
     
 Operating activities      
 Net income  $          23,094 $          24,755 $          27,476 $          29,244 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided 

by operating activities      
    Amortization of property, equipment and leaseholds, 

deferred charges and intangible assets  16,606 16,398 50,618 49,150 
    Amortization of tenant inducements, rent averaging 

liabilities and fair value lease contract liabilities  (1,672) (558) (3,189) (1,527) 
    Amortization of debt issuance costs  150 143 445 593 
    (Gain) loss on disposal of theatre assets  (341) 149 1,013 3,018 
    Future income taxes  184 546 (413) 50 
    Cash flow hedges - non cash interest  (74) (339) 1,310 (791) 
    Non-controlling interest  - - - (561) 
 Tenant inducements  736 932 3,001 4,084 
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities  (6,409) 6,085 (24,527) (37,701) 
 32,274 48,111 55,734 45,559 
 Investing activities      
 Proceeds from sale of theatre assets  54 31 2,453 2,508 
 Purchases of property, equipment and leaseholds  (13,412) (5,524) (28,039) (19,932) 
 Theatre shutdown payment  (450) - (750) (1,445) 
 Lease guarantee payment and acquisition of theatre assets  - - - (4,500) 
 Acquisition of Famous branded magazines  - - (387) (406) 
 Acquisition of Cinema City theatre assets  - (6,193) - (6,193) 
 (13,808) (11,686) (26,723) (29,968) 
 Financing activities      
 Distributions paid  (14,503) (13,646) (42,079) (39,736) 
 Borrowings under credit facility  3,000 14,000 13,000 52,000 
 Repayment of credit facility  (3,000) (42,000) (13,000) (65,000) 
 Payments under capital leases  (399) (371) (1,175) (1,092) 
 Investment in Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund Units  - - (6,887) (2,702) 
 Deferred financing fees  - (578) - (578) 
    (14,902) (42,595) (50,141) (57,108) 
     
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during 
the period  3,564 (6,170) (21,130) (41,517) 

     
 Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of period  18,212 21,036 42,906 56,383 
     
 Cash and cash equivalents - End of period  $          21,776 $          14,866 $          21,776 $          14,866 
     
 Supplemental information      
 Cash paid for interest  $            6,694 $            7,804 $          20,467 $          24,292 
 Class C LP Unit distributions paid and classified as interest  - - 3,160 3,161 
 Cash paid for income taxes - net  - - 15 11 
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RECONCILIATION OF PARTNERSHIP TO FUND NET INCOME 
 

Certain line items presented in the Fund’s consolidated financial statements differ from those presented for 
the Partnership.  These differences are the result of the Fund’s acquisition of control of the Partnership on 
April 2, 2007 and the accounting for the acquisition using the purchase method in the Fund’s consolidated 
financial statements.  This has resulted in a valuation basis for certain financial statement items in the Fund’s 
consolidated financial statements (including the related amortizations) which are different than the historic 
costs contained in the Partnership financial statements.  See note 2 of the Fund’s consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 and the table below. 
 
The following table illustrates the consolidation adjustments that result in the differences between the 
statements of operations of the Partnership compared to the statement of operations for the Fund for the three 
months ended September 30, 2008: 

 

 Partnership 
three months 

ended 
September 30, 

2008 
 Consolidation 

adjustments   

Fund   
three months 

ended 
September 30, 

2008 
Revenue     
Box office $         144,957 $                    -  $         144,957 
Concessions 71,520 -  71,520 
Other 22,626 -  22,626 
 239,103 -  239,103 
Expenses     
Film cost 76,212 -  76,212 
Cost of concessions 14,690 -  14,690 
Occupancy 37,320 1,221 (i) 38,541 
Other operating 52,370 -  52,370 
General and administrative 9,445 55 (i) 9,500 
 190,037 1,276  191,313 
     
Income before undernoted 49,066 (1,276)  47,790 
     
Amortization 16,606 4,234 (i) 20,840 
(Gain) loss on disposal of theatre assets (341) 569 (i) 228 
Interest and accretion on convertible debentures - 1,887 (ii) 1,887 
Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations 6,239 (2,327) (iii) 3,912 
Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust 3,500 (3,500) (iii) - 
Interest income (216) (7) (iv) (223) 
     
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interests 23,278 (2,132)  21,146 
     
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes     
Current - -  - 
Future 184 (1,566) (v) (1,382) 
 184 (1,566)  (1,382) 
     
Income before non-controlling interests 23,094 (566)  22,528 
Non-controlling interests - 4,150 (vi) 4,150 
     
Net income $           23,094 $           (4,716)  $           18,378 
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The following table illustrates the consolidation adjustments that result in the differences between the 
statements of operations of the Partnership compared to the statement of operations for the Fund for the nine 
months ended September 30, 2008: 
 

 

 Partnership 
nine months 

ended 
September 30, 

2008 
 Consolidation 

adjustments   

 Fund nine 
months ended 
September 30, 

2008 
Revenue     
Box office $         388,137 $                    -  $         388,137 
Concessions 190,272 -  190,272 
Other 59,859 -  59,859 
 638,268 -  638,268 
Expenses     
Film cost 202,850 -  202,850 
Cost of concessions 40,000 -  40,000 
Occupancy 113,357 3,168 (i) 116,525 
Other operating 144,334 -  144,334 
General and administrative 28,901 164 (i) 29,065 
 529,442 3,332  532,774 
     
Income before undernoted 108,826 (3,332)  105,494 
     
Amortization 50,618 12,689 (i) 63,307 
Loss on disposal of theatre assets 1,013 569 (i) 1,582 
Interest and accretion on convertible debentures - 5,550 (ii) 5,550 
Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations 20,227 (6,810) (iii) 13,417 
Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust 10,500 (10,500) (iii) - 
Interest income (591) (25) (iv) (616) 
     
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interests 27,059 (4,805)  22,254 
     
Recovery of income taxes     
Current (4) -  (4) 
Future (413) (1,648) (v) (2,061) 
 (417) (1,648)  (2,065) 
     
Income before non-controlling interests 27,476 (3,157)  24,319 
Non-controlling interests - 2,186 (vi) 2,186 
     
Net income $           27,476 $           (5,343)  $           22,133 

 
(i) Amounts relate to step acquisition valuation differences. 
(ii) Fund’s interest and accretion on its Convertible Debentures 
(iii) Consolidation adjustments to eliminate transactions between the Fund and the Partnership.  
(iv) Interest income earned at the Fund level. 
(v) Fund’s future income tax recovery. 
(vi) Represents the non-controlling interests of the Partnership arising from the consolidation of the Fund and the 

Partnership. 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
 
 The following table presents selected financial data for the Partnership for the three and nine months 
ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except per 
LP Unit, per patron and attendance data). 

 
For the three months ended 

September 30,  
For the nine months ended 

September 30, 

 2008  2007  2008  2007 

        

Total revenue  $ 239,103   $ 243,856   $ 638,268    $ 622,393 

        

Cost of operations     190,037      192,223      529,442       511,061 

        

Income before undernoted       49,066        51,633      108,826       111,332 

        

Amortization       16,606        16,398        50,618         49,150 

(Gain) loss on disposal of theatre assets           (341)             149          1,013           3,018 

Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations         6,239          6,648        20,227         20,758 

Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust         3,500          3,500        10,500         10,500 

Interest income           (216)            (363)            (591)            (838) 

Provision for (recovery of) income taxes            184             546            (417)               61 

Non-controlling interest                 -                  -                  -             (561) 

        

Net income  $   23,094   $   24,755   $   27,476    $   29,244 

        

Net income per LP Unit (i)  $     0.404   $     0.433   $     0.481    $     0.512 

        

Total assets 725,570  745,820  725,570   745,820 

        

Total long-term financial liabilities (ii) 335,000  335,000  335,000   335,000 

        

Cash distributions declared per LP Unit  $   0.3150   $   0.3000   $   0.9250    $   0.8832 

Distributable cash per LP Unit  $   0.6722   $   0.7489   $   1.4032    $   1.4620 

Box office revenue per patron  $       8.06   $       7.86   $       8.04    $       7.97 

Concession revenue per patron  $       3.98   $       3.79   $       3.94    $       3.84 

Film cost as a percentage of box office revenue 52.6%  53.2%  52.3%  52.3% 

Attendance 17,988  19,129  48,262   48,072 
 

(i) Computed using weighted average number of LP Units outstanding for the period (excluding unconverted Class C LP Units). 
(ii) Comprised of long-term debt and amount due to Cineplex Galaxy Trust.  Excludes the fair value of interest rate swap 

agreements, Class C LP Units – liability component, capital lease obligations, accrued pension benefit liability, other 
liabilities and deferred financing fees net against long-term debt. 
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 The following table presents summarized financial data for the Fund for the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except Fund Units 
outstanding and per Fund Unit data).  
 

 Three months ended September 30,  Nine months ended September 30, 

 2008 2007  2008 2007 

      

Net income $             18,378 $          14,621  $             22,133 $          25,092 

      

Basic net income per Fund Unit $                 0.43 $              0.34  $                 0.51 $              0.63 

Diluted net income per Fund Unit (i) $                 0.39 $              0.32  $                 0.43 $              0.50 

       

Total assets $        1,237,200 $     1,272,924  $        1,237,200 $    1,272,924 

Total long-term financial liabilities (ii) $           334,548 $        333,487  $           334,548 $       333,487 

       

Fund Units outstanding at September 30 43,414,217 43,239,449  43,414,217 43,239,449 

Cash distributions declared per Fund Unit $            0.3150 $          0.3000  $            0.9250 $          0.8832 
 

(i) Excludes the conversion of the Convertible Debentures, as such conversion would be anti-dilutive. 
(ii) Comprised of long-term debt and the Fund’s Convertible Debentures.  Excludes fair value of interest rate swap agreements, 

capital lease obligations, accrued pension benefit liability, other liabilities and deferred financing fees net against long-term 
debt. 

 
DISTRIBUTABLE CASH 
 

Management presents standardized distributable cash and distributable cash per unit because they are key 
measures used by investors to value and assess the Fund and the Partnership.  Distributable cash is a non-
GAAP measure generally used by Canadian open-ended trusts and other flow-through entities as an indicator 
of financial performance, and it should not be viewed as a measure of liquidity or a substitute for comparable 
metrics prepared in accordance with GAAP.  Standardized distributable cash is a non-GAAP measure 
recommended by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) in its July 2007 interpretive 
release, Standardized Distributable Cash in Income Trusts and Other Flow-Through Entities, and is designed 
to enhance comparability. 
 

Standardized distributable cash is defined by the CICA as cash from operating activities as reported in 
the GAAP financial statements, less total capital expenditures and any restrictions on distributions arising 
from compliance with financial covenants and limitations arising from the existence of a minority interest of a 
subsidiary.  Management defines distributable cash as standardized distributable cash adjusted for certain 
items, and considers distributable cash the amount available for distribution to unitholders.  Standardized 
distributable cash and distributable cash are not recognized measures under GAAP, and therefore have no 
standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and may not be comparable to similar terms and measures 
presented by similar issuers. 
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Management calculates distributable cash per LP Unit for the Partnership as follows (expressed in 
thousands of dollars except LP Units outstanding and per unit data): 
 

 
For the three months ended 

September 30,  
For the nine months ended 

September 30, 
 2008  2007  2008  2007 
        
Cash provided by operating activities $      32,274  $      48,111  $      55,734  $      45,559 
Less: Total capital expenditures (13,412)  (5,524)  (28,039)  (19,932) 
        
Standardized distributable cash 18,862  42,587  27,695  25,627 
        
Less:          
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (i) 6,409  (6,085)  24,527  37,701 
Tenant inducements (ii) (736)  (932)  (3,001)  (4,084) 
Principal component of capital lease obligations (399)  (371)  (1,175)  (1,092) 
        
Add:          
New build capital expenditures and other (iii) 10,280  3,631  20,255  13,570 
Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust (iv) 3,500  3,500  10,500  10,500 
Non-cash components in operating assets and liabilities (v) 503  464  1,392  1,290 
Expenses funded through integration and restructuring reserve (vi) -  5  -  42 
        
        
Distributable cash $      38,419  $      42,799  $      80,193  $      83,554 
        
Number of LP Units outstanding (vii) 57,150,687  57,150,421  57,150,687  57,150,421 
        
Distributable cash per LP Unit $      0.6722  $      0.7489  $      1.4032  $      1.4620 

 
(i) Changes in operating assets and liabilities are not considered a source or use of distributable cash. 
(ii) Tenant inducements received are for the purpose of funding new theatre capital expenditures and are not considered a source 

of distributable cash. 
(iii) New build capital expenditures and other represent expenditures on Board approved projects as well as any expenditures for 

digital equipment anticipated to be reimbursed by a third-party digital integrator, and exclude maintenance capital 
expenditures.  The Partnership’s Revolving Facility (discussed below under “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Credit 
Facilities”) is available for use to fund Board approved projects.  Certain integration related capital expenditures are funded 
out of reserve funds established on July 22, 2005. 

(iv) Subject to “Catch-up Payment” provision and is considered part of distributable cash (see discussion under “Liquidity and 
Capital Resources – Distributions”). 

(v) Certain non-cash components of other assets and liabilities are indirectly excluded from distributable cash to the extent they 
reflect permanent, not timing differences.  Such items include the accretion of the liability component of the Class C LP Units 
and amortization of deferred gains on sale-leaseback transactions. 

(vi) Amounts financed by the $25.0 million reserve set up upon completion of the acquisition of Famous Players are not 
considered a use of distributable cash. 

(vii) Excluding unconverted Class C LP Units.   
 

For the three months ended September 30, 2008, standardized distributable cash was $18.9 million, 
compared to $42.6 million for the same period in 2007.  The decrease reflects less cash generated by 
operating activities, net changes in working capital and increased capital expenditures during the third quarter 
of 2008.  The increased capital expenditures represented mainly increased new build spending, due to three 
theatres currently under construction as compared with one theatre under construction during the same period 
one year ago.  Standardized distributable cash increased $2.1 million to $27.7 million during the nine months 
ended September 30, 2008, from $25.6 million for the same period in 2007.  This increase was due to 
increased cash flows from operations, offset by higher capital expenditures.   

 

12



Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
 

 
CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND 
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT – MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS   

 
  

Distributable cash was $38.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to 
$42.8 million during the same period in 2007.  This decrease was mainly due to increased maintenance 
capital expenditure spending ($1.2 million) and lower cash flows generated from operating activities adjusted 
for changes in operating assets and liabilities and tenant inducement receipts, which are not considered as a 
use or source of distributable cash.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, distributable cash was 
$80.2 million, representing a decrease of $3.4 million from the same period in 2007 due to higher 
maintenance capital expenditures ($1.4 million) and lower cash flows generated from operating activities 
adjusted for changes in operating assets and liabilities and tenant inducement receipts, which are not 
considered a use or source of distributable cash. 

 
Alternatively, the calculation of distributable cash using the income statement as a reference point would 

be as follows (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars): 
 

 
For the three months 
ended September 30,  

For the nine months 
ended September 30, 

 2008  2007  2008  2007 
        
Income before undernoted $   49,066  $  51,633  $108,826  $111,332 
Adjust for:        

Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations (6,239)  (6,648)  (20,227)  (20,758) 
Interest income 216  363  591  838 
Recovery of (provision for) income taxes - current portion -  -  4  (11) 
Maintenance capital expenditures (3,132)  (1,893)  (7,784)  (6,362) 
Principal component of capital lease obligations (399)  (371)  (1,175)  (1,092) 
Expenses funded through integration and restructuring reserve -  5  -  42 

Non-cash items:        

Amortization of tenant inducements, rent averaging liabilities and 
fair value lease contract assets (1,672)  (558)  (3,189)  (1,527) 

Amortization of debt issuance costs 150  143  445  593 
Other non-cash items (i) 429  125  2,702  499 

        
Distributable cash $   38,419  $  42,799  $  80,193  $  83,554 

 
(i) Includes accretion on Class C LP Units, amortization of deferred gains on sale-leaseback transactions and non-cash 

movement in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements. 
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Three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2007 for the Partnership 
 

Total revenues. Total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $4.8 million to 
$239.1 million.  Total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $15.9 million to 
$638.3 million.  A discussion of the factors affecting the changes in box office, concession and other revenues 
for the periods compared to the same periods in 2007 is provided below. 

 
Box office revenues.  Box office revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $5.4 

million, or 3.6%, to $145.0 million.  Box office revenues are primarily dependent on paid attendance to the 
Partnership’s theatres, which was 18.0 million patrons in the third quarter of 2008, a decrease of 6.0% from 
the third quarter of 2007.  The average box office revenue per patron of the Partnership increased $0.20 from 
$7.86 in the third quarter of 2007 to $8.06 in 2008.  This increase in box office revenue per patron is driven 
by a higher proportion of ticket sales to adults during the period.  The top two films during the third quarter of 
2008 were The Dark Knight and Hancock, as compared to 2007, where the top two films during the period 
(Transformers and Harry Potter and the Order of the Phoenix) drove relatively more child ticket sales.  The 
success of premium-priced IMAX and 3D product during the quarter also contributed to this increase in box 
office revenue per patron.  The decrease in total box office revenues was due to decreased same store 
attendance levels ($10.3 million) and the impact of disposed theatres ($0.3 million), offset by higher average 
ticket prices at same-store locations ($2.8 million) and an increase due to new and acquired theatres ($2.4 
million).  The Canadian exhibition industry reported a box office decline of 1.4% (source:  Motion Picture 
Theatre Associations of Canada) for the period from June 27th, 2008 to September 25th, 2008 as compared to 
the period from June 29th, 2007 to September 27th, 2007.  On a basis consistent with the Partnership’s 
calendar reporting period (July 1st to September 30th), Canadian industry box office would show a decline of 
approximately 4.5%.   The Partnership’s box office decreased 3.6% during this period. 

 
Box office revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $4.8 million, or 1.3%, to 

$388.1 million.  Canadian industry box office was up approximately 0.9% (source: Motion Picture Theatre 
Associations of Canada) for the first nine months of 2008 due to stronger overall film product throughout the 
first half of 2008, offset by weaker product in the third quarter as compared to the prior year.  Paid attendance 
at the Partnership’s theatres was 48.3 million patrons for the first nine months of 2008, an increase of 0.4% 
over the prior year.  The average box office revenue per patron of the Partnership increased $0.07 to $8.04 in 
the first nine months of 2008 from $7.97 in 2007.  The success of premium-priced IMAX and 3D product 
during the quarter also contributed to this increase in box office revenue per patron, as well as selected price 
increases across the circuit.  In July 2007, the Partnership acquired three Cinema City branded locations, 
second run theatres which employ a discounted ticket price strategy, which reduced the Partnership’s average 
box office revenue per patron for the first nine months of 2008.  Excluding the three Cinema City locations 
purchased in July 2007 and therefore not fully reflected in the prior year comparatives, the average box office 
per patron of the Partnership was $8.10, representing a $0.13 increase over the first nine months of 2007.  The 
increase in total box office revenues was due to new and acquired theatres ($7.8 million) and higher average 
ticket prices at same-store locations ($4.9 million), offset by lower same-store attendance ($7.2 million) and 
the impact of disposed theatres ($0.7 million).  

   
Concession revenues.  Concession revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased 

$0.9 million, or 1.2%, to $71.5 million.  The decrease was due to lower same-store attendance levels ($4.9 
million) and the impact of disposed theatres ($0.3 million), offset by increased purchase incidence resulting in 
higher average concession revenues per patron at same-store locations ($2.9 million) and additional revenues 
from the operation of new and acquired theatres ($1.4 million).  Higher purchase incidence was achieved 
through a better product mix during the quarter as compared to the prior year.  The average concession 
revenue per patron of the Partnership was $3.98 for the three months ended September 30, 2008, up $0.19 
from $3.79 in 2007.  The average concession revenue per patron for the three months ended September 30, 
2008 also benefited from price increases on certain products effective June 1, 2008.   
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Concession revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $5.7 million, or 3.1%, to 
$190.3 million.  The increase was due to additional revenues from the operation of new and acquired theatres 
($5.4 million) and increased purchase incidence resulting in higher average concession revenues per patron 
($4.2 million), offset by decreased same store attendance levels ($3.5 million) and the impact of disposed 
theatres ($0.4 million).  Higher purchase incidence was achieved through a better product mix during the first 
nine months of 2008 as compared to the prior period.  The average concession revenue per patron of the 
Partnership increased from $3.84 in the first nine months of 2007 to $3.94 in 2008   Selected price increases 
implemented on June 1, 2008 contributed to this increase.  

 
The SCENE loyalty program was implemented during 2007 to drive incremental attendance and 

concession purchase incidence.  Benefits of the program are reflected in box office and concession revenue 
respectively.  Membership in the SCENE loyalty program at September 30, 2008 was approximately 
1,163,000, an increase of approximately 221,000 during the quarter and 545,000 year-to-date.  Management 
believes concession revenue has increased due to the higher attendance associated with the introduction of the 
“Big Ticket Tuesday” program as well as the 10% discount offered to members of the SCENE loyalty 
program which drives increased sales incidence among SCENE members. 

 
Other revenues.  Other revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2008 increased $1.6 million 

over the same period in 2007, or 7.4%, to $22.6 million.  The components of other revenue are as follows 
(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars): 
 

 
Three months ended 
September 30, 2008 

Three months ended 
September 30, 2007 % Change 

Media  $            16,547  $              14,628 13.1% 
Games 1,310 1,627 (19.5)% 
Other 4,769 4,817 (1.0)% 
  $            22,626  $              21,072 7.4% 

 
Media revenue increased 13.1% in the third quarter of 2008 over the same period in the prior year due to 

higher full motion and digital pre-show advertising revenues.  Games revenue decreased 19.5% due to the 
slate of films targeting more mature audiences in the third quarter of 2008 compared to the films drawing 
family audiences in the same period in the prior year.   

 
Other revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $5.3 million over the same 

period in 2007, or 9.8%, to $59.9 million.  The components of other revenue are as follows (expressed in 
thousands of Canadian dollars): 
 

 
Nine months ended 
September 30, 2008 

Nine months ended 
September 30, 2007 % Change 

Media  $            41,040  $              35,915 14.3% 
Games 3,850 4,380 (12.1)% 
Other 14,969 14,245 5.1% 
  $            59,859  $              54,540 9.8% 

 
Media revenue increased 14.3% in the first nine months of 2008 over the same period in the prior year 

primarily as a result of higher advertising revenues, as well as the sale of theatre naming rights for five 
flagship theatres across Canada, which was announced during the first quarter of 2007.  Games revenue 
decreased 12.1% due to the slate of films targeting more mature audiences in the second and third quarters of 
2008 compared to the films drawing family audiences in the same periods in the prior year.  Other revenues 
increased 5.1% due to higher breakage revenues associated with increased sales of gift cards and corporate 
coupons as compared to the prior period. 

 
Film cost.  Film cost for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $3.8 million to $76.2 

million.  Film cost varies primarily with box office revenue.  This decrease was driven by lower attendance in 
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the quarter combined with lower film rates due to the mix of film product.  As a percentage of box office 
revenue, film cost was 52.6% for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 53.2% for the three months 
ended September 30, 2007. 

  
Film cost for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $2.5 million to $202.9 million due to 

the higher attendance in 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year.  As a percentage of box office 
revenue, film cost was 52.3% for both the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007. 

  
Cost of concessions.  Cost of concessions for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $0.1 

million to $14.7 million.  Cost of concessions varies primarily with theatre attendance as well as the quantity 
and mix of concession offerings sold.  The decrease in cost of concessions was due to decreased same-store 
concession sales ($1.0 million), offset by increased same-store purchase incidence ($0.6 million) and the 
additional costs from the operation of new and acquired theatres ($0.3 million).  As a percentage of 
concession revenues, cost of concessions was 20.5% for both the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 
2007.  The 10% discount offered to members of the SCENE loyalty program accounted for a 0.2% increase in 
the cost of concessions during the third quarter of 2008 as compared to the prior year.   

 
Cost of concessions for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $1.8 million to $40.0 

million.  The increase in cost of concessions was due to increased same-store purchase incidence ($1.5 
million) and the additional costs from the operation of new and acquired theatres ($1.1 million), offset by 
decreased same-store concession sales ($0.7 million) and the impact of disposed theatres ($0.1 million).  As a 
percentage of concession revenues, cost of concessions increased from 20.7% for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2007, to 21.0% for the nine months ended September 30, 2008.  This increase was driven by 
the 10% discount offered to members of the SCENE loyalty program (a 0.2% increase in the cost of 
concessions during the first nine months of 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year) and the 
films catering to more mature audiences in the second and third quarters of 2008 driving the sale of lower 
margin concession items. 

 
Occupancy expense.  Occupancy expense for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $3.9 

million to $37.3 million.  The decrease was primarily due to a one-time theatre shutdown expense for a 
theatre closed on September 30, 2007 included in the prior year’s results ($2.8 million), higher one-time 
benefits of lease-related amounts recognized during the third quarter of 2008 as compared to the prior period 
($0.5 million), lower real estate taxes, insurance and non-cash occupancy costs ($0.7 million) and the impact 
of disposed theatres ($0.5 million).  The incremental costs associated with new and acquired theatres ($0.6 
million) offset these decreases.  The three months ended September 30, 2008 contain $1.2 million of one-time 
benefits relating to the settlement of lease-related amounts during the period, the prior period contained $0.7 
of these benefits. 

 
Occupancy expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 decreased $1.5 million to $113.4 

million.  The decrease was primarily due to a one-time theatre shutdown expense for a theatre closed on 
September 30, 2007 included in the prior year’s results ($2.8 million) and the impact of disposed theatres 
($1.5 million), offset by incremental costs associated with new and acquired theatres ($2.8 million).  During 
the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, there were approximately $3.5 million of one-time 
benefits of lease-related amounts during the periods. 

 
Other operating expenses.  Other operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2008 

increased $6.2 million to $52.4 million.  The increase in other operating expenses was due to the incremental 
impact of costs associated with new and acquired theatres ($0.8 million), operating costs associated with the 
SCENE loyalty program and development costs of the Partnership’s interactive business ($0.6 million) and 
increased operating costs ($5.0 million) including minimum wage increases ($1.1 million), extended 
operating hours during the quarter ($0.4 million), additional marketing costs ($1.0 million) and other costs 
related to expanded service offerings such as no-charge internet ticketing and 3D technology licensing 
payments ($0.9 million combined).  These increases were offset by the impact of disposed theatres ($0.2 
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million).  The costs related to operating and growing the SCENE loyalty program and the development costs 
of the Partnership’s interactive business were $1.6 million in the third quarter of 2008 and $1.0 million in the 
prior year.  The Partnership plans to launch an initiative to sell DVD’s through its cineplex.com website 
during the fourth quarter of 2008. 

 
Other operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased $13.4 million to 

$144.3 million.  The increase in other operating expenses was due to the incremental impact of costs 
associated with new and acquired theatres ($3.4 million), costs associated with operating and growing the 
SCENE loyalty program and development costs of the Partnership’s interactive business ($2.1 million) and 
increased operating costs ($8.6 million) as a result of minimum wage increases, extended operating hours 
during the third quarter and additional marketing and other costs related to expanded service offerings.    
These increases were offset by the impact of disposed theatres ($0.7 million).  The operating costs related to 
the SCENE loyalty program and the development costs of the Partnership’s interactive business were $5.7 
million in the first nine months of 2008 and $3.6 million in the prior year. 

 
General and administrative costs.  General and administrative costs decreased $0.5 million to $9.4 

million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, primarily as a result of decreased costs under the 
Partnership’s Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) ($0.7 million), offset by increased direct costs ($0.1 
million) and higher pension costs resulting from the Partnership’s defined benefit plan’s lower than expected 
return on plan assets ($0.1 million).  The Partnership’s defined benefit pension plan is in the process of being 
wound up. 

 
General and administrative costs increased $2.2 million to $28.9 million for the nine months ended 

September 30, 2008, primarily as a result of increased costs under the Partnership’s Long Term Incentive 
Plan (“LTIP”) ($0.9 million), increased direct costs ($0.8 million) and higher pension costs resulting from the 
Partnership’s defined benefit plan’s lower than expected return on plan assets ($0.5 million).   

 
Income before undernoted.  The Partnership reported income before undernoted for the three and nine 

months ended September 30, 2008 of $49.1 million and $108.8 million, respectively, as compared to income 
before undernoted of $51.6 million and $111.3 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 
2007.  This change was due to the aggregate effect of the factors described above. 

 
Amortization.  For the three months ended September 30, 2008 amortization costs increased $0.2 million 

to $16.6 million, primarily due to the effect of new and acquired theatre assets, net of the impact of fully 
amortized theatre assets and disposed theatre assets. 

 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 amortization costs increased $1.5 million to $50.6 

million, primarily due to the effect of new and acquired theatre assets, net of the impact of fully amortized 
theatre assets and disposed theatre assets. 

 
(Gain) loss on disposal of theatre assets.  The gain or loss on disposal of theatre assets represents the 

gain or loss on theatre assets that were sold or otherwise disposed of.  For the three months ended September 
30, 2008, the Partnership recorded a gain of $0.3 million, which primarily relates to the write off of lease-
related liabilities for a theatre that was closed during September.  The Partnership recorded a loss of $0.1 
million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 that was primarily due to the disposal of theatre 
equipment. 

 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 the Partnership recorded a loss of $1.0 million as 

compared to a loss of $3.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007.  The loss primarily relates 
to a theatre shutdown expense of $0.8 million related to a theatre generating negative cash flow that was 
closed and the disposition of theatre equipment, offset by a gain on the write off of lease-related liabilities for 
a theatre that was closed during September.  In the prior year, the loss primarily related to a lease termination 
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payment of $2.0 million related to a theatre generating negative cash flow, and the disposition of theatre 
equipment. 

 
Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations.  Interest on long-term debt for the three months 

ended September 30, 2008 decreased to $6.2 million from $6.7 million for the same period in 2007.  The 
decrease primarily reflects lower long-term debt interest due to lower average debt levels.  Interest expense is 
comprised of the following (expressed in millions of Canadian dollars):  

 

Interest expense  

 Three months 
ended 

September 30, 
2008  

 Three months 
ended 

September 30, 
2007 

  Long-term debt interest expense  $                     3.2 $                     3.9 
  Class C LP Units interest expense  1.6 1.6 
  Capital lease interest expense  0.7 0.7 
 Sub-total - cash interest expense  5.5 6.2 
   
  Class C LP Units accretion expense  0.7 0.7 
  Deferred financing fee amortization  0.1 0.1 
  Interest rate swap - non-cash portion recognized in the period  (0.1) (0.3) 
 Sub-total - non-cash interest expense  0.7 0.5 
 Total interest expense  $                     6.2 $                     6.7 

 
Interest on long-term debt for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 decreased to $20.2 million 

from $20.8 million for the same period in 2007.  The decrease primarily reflects lower long-term debt interest 
due to lower average debt levels and lower negotiated rates, offset by higher non-cash interest on the interest 
rate swap agreements.  Interest expense is comprised of the following (expressed in millions of Canadian 
dollars): 

 

Interest expense  

 Nine months 
ended 

September 30, 
2008  

 Nine months 
ended 

September 30, 
2007 

  Long-term debt interest expense  $                     9.7 $                   12.3 
  Class C LP Units interest expense  4.8 4.8 
  Capital lease interest expense  2.0 2.0 
 Sub-total - cash interest expense  16.5 19.1 
   
  Class C LP Units accretion expense  2.0 1.9 
  Deferred financing fee amortization  0.4 0.6 
  Interest rate swap – non-cash portion recognized in the period  1.3 (0.8) 
 Sub-total - non-cash interest expense  3.7 1.7 
 Total interest expense  $                   20.2 $                   20.8 

 
Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust.  Interest on the loan from the Trust represents interest at a 

rate of 14% on the $100.0 million loan from the Trust.  For each of the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2008 and 2007, interest on the loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust was $3.5 million and $10.5 
million, respectively. 

 
Interest income.  Interest income was $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 

$0.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007.  For the nine months ended September 30, 
interest income was $0.6 million and $0.8 million for 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The decrease in the 
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current year over the prior period primarily relates to lower interest rates and lower average cash on hand 
balances. 

 
Income taxes.  For the three months ended September 30, 2008, a subsidiary of the Partnership recorded 

a future income tax expense of $0.2 million (2007 - $0.5 million).  For the nine months ended September 30, 
2008, a subsidiary of the Partnership recorded a future income tax recovery of $0.4 million and a current tax 
recovery of $4 thousand (2007 - $0.1 million future income tax expense and a current income tax expense of 
$11 thousand). 

 
Net income.  Net income for the three months ended September 30, 2008 decreased from $24.8 million 

for the three months ended September 30, 2007 to $23.1 million due to the net effect of all the other factors 
described above.  Net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $27.5 million, down $1.8 
million from $29.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. 

 
EBITDA 
 
 Management defines EBITDA as earnings before interest income and expense, income taxes and 
amortization expense. Adjusted EBITDA excludes the loss on disposal of theatre assets.  The Partnership’s 
management uses adjusted EBITDA to evaluate performance primarily because of the significant effect 
certain unusual or non-recurring charges and other items have on EBITDA from period to period.  EBITDA 
adjusted for various unusual items is also used to define certain financial covenants in the Partnership’s credit 
facilities.  
 
 EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAP measures generally used as an indicator of financial 
performance and they should not be seen as a measure of liquidity or a substitute for comparable metrics 
prepared in accordance with GAAP.  The Partnership’s EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA may differ from 
similar calculations as reported by other entities and accordingly may not be comparable to EBITDA or 
adjusted EBITDA as reported by other entities. 
 
 The following represents management’s calculation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA (expressed in 
thousands of Canadian dollars): 
 

 Three months ended 
September 30, 

 Nine months ended 
September 30, 

 2008  2007  2008  2007 
        
Net income  $   23,094   $   24,755   $   27,476   $29,244 
        
Amortization       16,606        16,398        50,618   49,150 
Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations         6,239          6,648        20,227   20,758 
Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy Trust         3,500          3,500        10,500   10,500 
Interest income           (216)            (363)            (591)  (838) 
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes            184             546            (417)  61 
        
EBITDA       49,407        51,484      107,813       108,875 
        
Non-controlling interest                 -                  -                  -   (561) 
(Gain) loss on disposal of theatre assets           (341)             149          1,013   3,018 
        
        
Adjusted EBITDA  $   49,066   $   51,633   $ 108,826       111,332 

 
 Adjusted EBITDA margin, calculated as adjusted EBITDA divided by total operating revenues, was 
20.5% for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to 21.2% in the prior period.  The decrease 
was primarily due to lower exhibition revenues and increased theatre operating costs including payroll costs, 
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due in part to higher minimum wages and extended theatre operating hours throughout the summer months 
for extra screenings of The Dark Knight.  For the year to date, adjusted EBITDA margin was 17.1% as 
compared to 17.9% in the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to increased operating costs including 
payroll costs, due in part to higher minimum wages and incremental costs related to the SCENE loyalty 
program and development costs of the Partnership’s interactive business.  
 
SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY RESULTS 
 
 Historically, the Partnership’s revenues have been seasonal, coinciding with the timing of major film 
releases by the major distributors. The most marketable motion pictures are generally released during the 
summer and the late-November through December holiday season.  This may cause changes, from quarter to 
quarter in attendance levels, theatre staffing levels and reported results.  To meet working capital 
requirements during the traditionally lower-revenue quarters, the Partnership has available for its use the 
Revolving Facility (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources – Credit Facilities” discussed below).  As of 
September 30, 2008, there were no amounts drawn on the Revolving Facility. 
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Summary of Quarterly Results (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except per unit, per patron and 
attendance data): 
 

              
 2008  2007  2006 

 Q3 Q2 Q1  Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1  Q4 
             
Total revenue $239,103 $209,324 $189,841  $182,626 $243,856 $199,941 $178,596  $194,964 
           
Cost of operations 190,037 175,732 163,673  156,796 192,223 164,897 153,941  158,539 
           
Income from operations 49,066 33,592 26,168  25,830 51,633 35,044 24,655  36,425 
           
Amortization 16,606 17,138 16,874  18,061 16,398 16,478 16,274  17,081 
(Gain) loss on disposal of theatre 
assets (341) 1,043 311  521 149 1,002 1,867  3,623 

Interest on long-term debt and 
capital lease obligations 6,239 7,148 6,840  6,371 6,648 6,604 7,506  7,912 

Interest on loan from Cineplex 
Galaxy Trust 3,500 3,500 3,500  3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500  3,500 
Interest income (216) (89) (286)  (131) (363) (223) (252)  (248) 
Income taxes 184 (188) (413)  281 546 (20) (465)  (112) 
Non-controlling interest - - -  - - (561) -  106 

           
Net income (loss) $  23,094 $    5,040 $     (658)  $ (2,773) $  24,755 $    8,264 $  (3,775)  $    4,563 

           

Net income (loss) per LP Unit (i) $    0.404 $    0.088 $  (0.012)  $ (0.049) $0.433 $0.145 ($0.066)  $0.080 

           

Cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 32,274 18,180 5,280  51,879 48,111 11,539 (14,091)  79,639 

Cash used in investing activities (13,808) (6,369) (6,546)  (9,817) (11,686) (9,478) (8,804)  (13,771) 
Cash used in financing activities (14,902) (14,323) (20,916)  (14,022) (42,595) (8,529) (5,984)  (33,182) 

           
Net change in cash $    3,564 $ (2,512) $(22,182)  $  28,040 $ (6,170) $ (6,468) $(28,879)  $  32,686 

Box office revenue per patron $      8.06 $      8.08 $      7.98  $      8.07 $      7.86 $      7.98 $      8.13  $      8.17 
Concession revenue per patron $      3.98 $      3.97 $      3.87  $      3.87 $      3.79 $      3.97 $      3.77  $      3.67 

Attendance (in thousands of 
patrons) 17,988 15,630 14,645  13,076 19,129 15,050 13,893  14,369 

 
 
(i) Computed using weighted average number of LP Units outstanding for the period (excluding unconverted Class C LP Units). 
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Distributable Cash 
 
Management calculates distributable cash per LP Unit for the Partnership as follows (expressed in thousands 
of Canadian dollars except per unit data and number of LP Units outstanding): 
 

              
 2008  2007  2006 
  Q3 Q2 Q1  Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1  Q4 
             
Cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities $      32,274 $     18,180 $       5,280  $     51,879 $     48,111 $     11,539 $  (14,091)  $     79,639 
Less: Total capital expenditures (13,412) (6,810) (7,817)  (7,660) (5,524) (9,480) (4,928)  (13,971) 
           
Standardized distributable cash 18,862 11,370 (2,537)  44,219 42,587 2,059 (19,019)  65,668 
           
Less:             

Changes in operating assets and 
liabilities 6,409 5,560 12,558  (34,779) (6,085) 15,195 28,591  (46,995) 
Tenant inducements (736) (447) (1,818)  (1,820) (932) (2,535) (617)  (6,829) 

Principal component of capital lease 
obligations (399) (392) (384)  (377) (371) (364) (357)  (347) 
           
Add:             

New build capital expenditures and 
other 10,280 2,992 6,983  3,637 3,631 6,506 3,433  9,932 

Interest on loan from Cineplex Galaxy 
Trust 3,500 3,500 3,500  3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500  3,500 

Non-cash components in operating 
assets and liabilities 503 444 445  457 464 405 421  320 

Expenses funded through integration 
and restructuring reserve - - -  5 5 21 16  20 
           
Distributable cash $     38,419 $     23,027 $     18,747  $     14,842 $     42,799 $     24,787 $     15,968  $     25,269 
           
Number of LP Units outstanding 57,150,687 57,150,687 57,150,687  57,150,594 57,150,421 57,150,421 57,150,421  57,150,421 
           
Distributable cash per LP Unit $     0.6722 $     0.4029 $     0.3280  $     0.2597 $    0.7489 $    0.4337 $     0.2794  $     0.4421 
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BALANCE SHEET 
 
Assets 
 
 Total assets decreased $52.4 million from December 31, 2007 to $725.6 million at September 30, 2008 
due mainly to decreases in cash and cash equivalents of $21.1 million, property, equipment and leaseholds of 
$16.2 million, accounts receivable of $13.3 million and other intangible assets of $4.2 million; offset by an 
increase in prepaid expenses of $3.6 million. 
  
Property, equipment and leaseholds. The decrease in property, equipment and leaseholds from $420.9 million 
at December 31, 2007 to $404.7 million at September 30, 2008 is due to amortization expenses ($46.4 
million) and asset dispositions ($0.8 million) offset by new build and other capital expenditures ($23.2 
million) and maintenance capital expenditures ($7.8 million). 
 
Accounts receivable. Accounts receivable decreased $13.3 million to $32.1 million at September 30, 2008 
from $45.3 million at December 31, 2007.  This decrease was mainly due to the collection of receivables 
from the sale of gift cards and coupons and the collection of media advertising revenues from the 2007 
holiday season.   
 
Other intangibles.  Other intangible assets decreased by $4.2 million from $52.8 million at December 31, 
2007 to $48.7 million at September 30, 2008.  This decrease is due to amortization. 
 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.  Prepaid expenses and other current assets increased $3.6 million 
from $4.6 million at December 31, 2007 to $8.2 million at September 30, 2007.  The increase is mainly due to 
the prepayment of realty and business taxes in the first half of the year which are then expensed over the 
remainder of the year. 
 
Liabilities 
 
  Total liabilities decreased $31.9 million to $740.2 million at September 30, 2008 primarily due to a 
decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $25.3 million and deferred revenue of $12.6 million, 
offset by the fair value of interest rate swap agreement liability.   
 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.  Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased from $80.8 
million at December 31, 2007 to $55.5 million at September 30, 2008.  The decrease is primarily due to the 
settlement of year end liabilities relating to increased business volumes during the fourth quarter of 2007. 
 
Deferred revenue. Deferred revenue decreased by $12.6 million to $52.0 million at September 30, 2008 from 
$64.6 million at December 31, 2007.  This is due primarily to the redemption of gift cards and coupons sold 
during the holiday season in December 2007.   
 
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements.  Fair value of the interest rate swap agreements represent the fair 
value of the interest rate swap agreements entered into in July, 2005 and April, 2008.  The July 2005 swap 
agreements valuation moved from an asset of $1.5 million at December 31, 2007 to a liability of $1.1 million 
at September 30, 2008.  At September 30, 2008 the swap agreements the Partnership entered during the 
second quarter of 2008 had a fair value liability position of $3.0 million. 
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OUTSTANDING FUND UNITS  
 
The Fund had the following Fund Units outstanding for the nine months ended September 30 (expressed in 
thousands of Canadian dollars, except for numbers of Fund Units): 
 

 Nine months ended  Nine months ended 

 September 30, 2008   September 30, 2007 

 
Number of 
Fund Units Amount  

Number of 
Fund Units Amount 

      
Opening balance – Beginning of period      
Fund Units 43,239,715 $    562,960  34,116,698 $    419,819 
Convertible debentures - equity component - 8,546  - 8,546 
LTIP compensation obligation - 1,024  - - 
LTIP Fund Units (117,491) (1,802)  - - 
 43,122,224 570,728  34,116,698 428,365 
      
Transactions during the period      
Issuance of Fund Units under the Exchange Agreement 174,502 2,139  9,122,751 143,136 
LTIP compensation obligation, net of vested Fund Units - 1,845  - 896 
Purchase of LTIP Fund Units (410,949) (6,887)  (117,491) (1,802) 
Settlement of LTIP obligation through transfer of Fund Units 

to LTIP participants 196,014 3,196  - - 
 (40,433) 293  9,005,260 142,230 
      
Closing balance – End of period      
Fund Units 43,414,217 565,099  43,239,449 562,955 
Convertible debentures - equity component - 8,546  - 8,546 
LTIP compensation obligation - 2,869  - 896 
LTIP Fund Units (332,426) (5,493)  (117,491) (1,802) 
 43,081,791 $    571,021  43,121,958 $    570,595 

 
The LTIP compensation is recorded as an accrued liability until the corresponding LTIP pool of funds is 

utilized to acquire Fund Units, at which point it the liability is reclassified to unit capital, as the Fund is 
obligated to deliver a fixed number of Fund Units, the value of which will vary with the fair value of the Fund 
Units.  Subsequent changes in the fair value of the Fund Units are not recognized. 

 
Under terms of the Exchange Agreement, on April 2, 2007, COC exchanged 18,411,913 Class B, Series 

1 and 2,086,957 Class B, Series 2-C LP Units for 11,376,119 units of CELP 2007 LP (“CELP 2007 LP 
Units”) and 9,122,751 Fund Units. 

 
Class B and Class D LP Units of the Partnership and CELP 2007 LP Units may be exchanged for Fund 

Units on a one-for-one basis.  The following Class B and Class D LP Units and CELP 2007 LP Units had not 
been exchanged for Fund Units at September 30, 2008 and 2007: 

 Number of Units 
 2008  2007 
    

 Class B Series 1  626,589  626,589 
 Class B Series 2-G  1,733,762  1,779,264 
 Class D  -  129,000 
 CELP 2007 Class B  11,376,119  11,376,119 

    
 13,736,470  13,910,972 
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During the first quarter of 2008, the Fund initiated a Fund Unit option plan designed to compensate 
certain employees for service while encouraging Fund Unit ownership by those individuals, ensuring their 
interests are aligned with those of the Fund, and providing compensation opportunities to attract, retain and 
motivate key employees.  On February 12, 2008, 1,250,000 Fund Unit options with an exercise price equal to 
the market price of $17.03 were granted to 21 employees, subject to approval by the Fund’s unitholders.  The 
options vest one-third on each of the successive anniversaries of the grant date if unexercised.  The option 
plan and aforementioned option grants were approved by the Fund’s unitholders at the annual general 
meeting on May 14, 2008.  The Fund anticipates that option-holders will exercise, and that the administrators 
of the Plan will settle, the options for cash.  The Fund, therefore, accounts for options issued under the plan as 
cash-settled liabilities.  The options are recorded at fair value at each balance sheet date, based on the market 
price of Fund Units in excess of the exercise price, taking into account the options vested on a graded 
schedule.  Forfeitures are recorded as they occur.  From May 14, 2008, the date of approval of the plan by the 
Fund’s unitholders, through September 30, 2008, no compensation expense or liability was recorded, as the 
average market price of the Fund Units did not exceed the exercise price. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
Operating Activities 
 
 Cash flow is generated primarily from the sale of admission tickets, concession sales and other revenues. 
Generally, this provides the Partnership with positive working capital, since cash revenues are normally 
collected in advance of the payment of certain expenses. Box office revenues are directly related to the 
success and appeal of the film product produced and distributed by the studios. 
 

Cash provided by operating activities was $32.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 
compared to $48.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007.  The primary reason for the 
change was the changes in operating assets and liabilities versus the same period one year ago (a use of $6.4 
million in the third quarter of 2008 compared to a source $6.1 million in the prior year) driven by a decrease 
in accounts payable for the third quarter of 2008 compared to an increase in accounts payable during the third 
quarter of 2007 and a lower net income for the period versus the prior year ($1.7 million). 

 
Cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $55.7 million 

as compared to $45.6 million during the same period one year ago.  This change was due to the changes in 
operating assets and liabilities versus the prior year ($24.5 million in 2008 compared to $37.7 million in 
2007), offset by lower tenant inducement receipts during the period ($1.1 million). 
 
Investing Activities 
 
 Cash used in investing activities for the three months ended September 30, 2008 of $13.8 million related 
to capital expenditures ($13.4 million) and a theatre shutdown payment ($0.5 million), offset by proceeds 
from the sale of theatre assets of $0.1 million.  Cash used in investing activities for the three months ended 
September 30, 2007 of $11.7 million related to capital expenditures ($5.5 million) and cash paid on the 
acquisition of the Cinema City theatre assets ($6.2 million).  Capital expenditures were higher in the third 
quarter of 2008 as compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to expenditures related to three 
properties under construction during 2008 compared to one during the same period in 2007. 
  
 Cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 of $26.7 million related 
to capital expenditures ($28.0 million), theatre shutdown payments ($0.8 million) and a payment relating to 
the acquisition of the Famous magazines ($0.4 million), offset by proceeds from real estate transactions and 
proceeds from the sale of theatre assets ($2.5 million).  Cash used in investing activities for the nine months 
ended September 30, 2007 of $30.0 million related to capital expenditures ($19.9 million), cash paid on the 
acquisition of Cinema City branded theatres located in Winnipeg, Manitoba and Edmonton, Alberta ($6.2 
million), a lease guarantee payment ($4.5 million) and theatre shutdown payments ($1.4 million), offset by 
proceeds from real estate transactions ($2.5 million).   
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 The Partnership funds maintenance capital expenditures through internally generated cash flow and cash 
on hand.  The Partnership’s Revolving Facility (discussed in “Credit Facilities”) is available to fund new 
theatre capital expenditures.   
 
Financing Activities 
 

Cash used in financing activities for the three months ended September 30, 2008 of $14.9 million was 
due primarily to distribution payments ($14.5 million) and payments under capital leases ($0.4 million).  
Cash used in financing activities for the three months ended September 30, 2007 of $42.6 million was due 
primarily to credit facility net repayments described below under “Credit Facilities” ($28.0 million) and 
distribution payments ($13.6 million). 

 
Cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 of $50.1 million was due 

to distribution payments ($42.1 million), the acquisition of Fund Units ($6.9 million) and payments under 
capital leases ($1.1 million).  Cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 
of $57.1 million was due to distribution payments ($39.7 million) and credit facility net repayments ($13.0 
million). 

 
 The Partnership believes that it will be able to meet its future cash obligations with its cash and cash 
equivalents, cash flows from operations and funds available under the Second Amended Credit Facilities as 
described in “Credit Facilities”. 
 
Distributions - Partnership 
 

Partnership distributions are made on a monthly basis to unitholders of record of Class A LP Units, Class 
B LP Units, converted Class C LP Units and Class D LP Units on the last business day of each month.  For 
the three months ended September 30, 2008, the Partnership’s distributable cash per LP Unit was $0.6722 
compared to $0.7489 for the same period in 2007.  The declared distribution per LP Unit and interest on the 
Galaxy Note (see “Credit Facilities” below) per LP Unit for the three months ended September 30, 2008 
totaled $0.3150, and for the three months ended September 30, 2007 totaled $0.3000.  For the period from 
January 1, 2008 to September 30, 2008, the Partnership’s distributable cash flow per unit was $1.4032 and 
$1.4620 for the same period in 2007.  The declared distribution per LP Unit and interest on the Galaxy Note 
per LP Unit for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 totaled $0.9250, and for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2007 totaled $0.8832.   

 
Distributable cash is a non-GAAP measure generally used by Canadian open-ended trusts as an indicator 

of financial performance and it should not be seen as a measure of liquidity or a substitute for comparable 
metrics prepared in accordance with GAAP.  The Partnership’s distributable cash may differ from similar 
calculations as reported by other similar entities and accordingly may not be comparable to distributable cash 
as reported by such entities.   

 
Holders of the Class B LP Units and Class D LP Units are entitled to receive, before distributions made 

by the Partnership to holders of the Class A LP Units and the converted Class C LP Units, a per unit 
distribution equal to the per unit interest payments made to the Trust in respect of the Galaxy Note (the 
“Catch-up Payment”).  Any remaining amounts available for distribution will be shared pro rata between the 
holders of the Class A LP Units, Class B LP Units, converted Class C LP Units and Class D LP Units.  The 
purpose of the Catch-up Payment is to ensure that distributions on the Class B LP Units and Class D LP Units 
are equal to Class A LP Unit and converted Class C LP Unit distributions, on a per unit basis, which reflect, 
in part, payments received by the Trust on the Galaxy Note. 

 
The Partnership made distributions on the unconverted Class C LP Units during the nine months ended 

September 30, 2008 and 2007 of $3.2 million.  Distributions on the unconverted Class C LP Units are made 

26



Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
 

 
CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND 
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT – MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS   

 
  

twice a year, on the business day before June 30 and December 31.  Distributions on the unconverted Class C 
LP Units are deducted by the Partnership in computing its net income and distributable cash. 

 
Distributions - Fund 
 
         For the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 the Fund declared distributions totaling 
$0.3150 and $0.3000 per Fund Unit, respectively.  Effective for the May 2008 distribution, the Fund 
increased its monthly distribution from $0.1000 to $0.1050 per Fund Unit, or $1.26 per Fund Unit on an 
annualized basis from $1.20 per Fund unit.  Effective for the May 2007 distribution, the Fund increased its 
monthly distribution from $0.0958 to $0.1000 per Fund Unit, or $1.20 per Fund Unit on an annualized basis 
from $1.1496 per Fund unit.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Fund declared 
distributions totaling $0.9250 and $0.8832 per Fund Unit, respectively.  The Fund is entirely dependent on 
distributions from the Partnership and interest payments from GEI to make its own distributions.   
 

The after-tax return to unitholders of the Fund subject to Canadian federal income tax from an 
investment in Fund Units will depend, in part, on the composition for tax purposes of the distributions paid by 
the Fund, portions of which may be fully or partially taxable or may constitute non-taxable returns of capital 
which are not included in a unitholder’s income but which reduce the adjusted cost base of the Fund Units to 
the unitholder.  The composition of distributions for tax purposes has not yet been determined for 2008.   

 
The composition for tax purposes of these distributions may change over time, thus affecting the after-tax 

return to such unitholders.  The composition of distributions for tax purposes for each of the following years 
ending December 31 were as follows (in dollars per unit):   

 
  Taxable Income Capital Gain Return of Capital 

 Distributions 
Declared 

 
Amount 

Percent of 
Distribution 

 
Amount 

Percent of 
Distribution 

 
Amount 

Percent of 
Distribution 

2007 $1.18320 $1.12356 95.0% $            - - $0.05964 5.0% 
2006 $1.14960 $1.07256 93.3% $            - - $0.07704 6.7% 
2005 $1.14960 $0.77332 67.3% $0.19097 16.6% $0.18531 16.1% 

 
At September 30, 2008, based on substantively enacted tax rates, the Partnership had tax pools of $604.6 

million available to offset future taxable income.  Use of these tax pools is restricted to a percentage claim 
based on the nature of the original expenditure. 

 
In 2007, the Department of Finance (Canada) (“Finance”) substantively enacted modifications to the 

income tax rules that will result in the taxation of distributions made by the Fund beginning in the year 2011.  
In July 2008, Finance released proposed amendments to the Income Tax Act (Canada) (the “Tax Act”) to 
facilitate conversion of existing income trusts, REITs and other public flow-through entities into corporations 
on a tax-deferred basis (the “Conversion Rules”).  The Conversion Rules fulfill Finance’s undertaking to 
provide existing income trusts with tax efficient structuring options to convert to corporate form in advance of 
their 2011 taxation year – at which time most income trusts would become subject to a new entity-level tax 
based on corporate income tax rates.  Management is currently reviewing the proposed Conversion Rules to 
assess their impact on the Fund (see “Risks and Uncertainties” below). 
  
Credit Facilities 
 

The Partnership’s credit agreement with a syndicate of lenders consists of the following facilities 
(collectively, the “Second Amended Credit Facilities”): 

(i) a five-year $130 million senior secured revolving credit facility (“Revolving Facility”); and 
(ii) a five-year $235 million senior secured non-revolving term credit facility (“Term Facility”).  
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The Second Amended Credit Facilities bear interest at a floating rate based on the Canadian dollar prime 
rate, or banker’s acceptances rates plus, in each case, an applicable margin to those rates, and amended and 
restated the Partnership’s former amended credit facilities (“Former Amended Credit Facilities”).  There are 
provisions to increase the Revolving Facility commitment amount by an additional $100 million with the 
consent of the lenders.  The Term Facility matures in July 2012 and is payable in full at maturity, with no 
scheduled repayment of principal required prior to maturity.   

 
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Partnership borrowed and repaid $3.0 

million and $13.0 million, respectively, under the Second Amended Credit Facilities.  During the three 
months ended September 30, 2007, the Partnership borrowed $14.0 million and repaid $42.0 million under 
the Former Amended Credit Facilities.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2007 the Partnership 
borrowed $52.0 million and repaid $65.0 million under the Former Amended Credit Facilities.  At September 
30, 2008 the Partnership had no amount outstanding under the Revolving Facility and $235.0 million 
outstanding under the Term Facility. 

The Partnership’s Second Amended Credit Facilities contain numerous restrictive covenants that limit 
the discretion of the Partnership’s management with respect to certain business matters.  These covenants 
place restrictions on, among other things, the ability of the Partnership to create liens or other encumbrances, 
to pay distributions or make certain other payments, investments, loans and guarantees and to sell or 
otherwise dispose of assets and merge or consolidate with another entity. 
 

The Second Amended Credit Facilities are secured by all of the Partnership’s assets and are guaranteed 
by the Trust.      

 
 The Partnership believes that the Second Amended Credit Facilities and ongoing cash flow from 
operations will be sufficient to allow it to meet ongoing requirements for capital expenditures, investments in 
working capital and distributions.  However, the Partnership’s needs may change and in such event the 
Partnership’s ability to satisfy its obligations will be dependent upon future financial performance, which in 
turn will be subject to financial, tax, business and other factors, including elements beyond the Partnership’s 
control. 

                  
Interest rate swap agreements.  Effective July 22, 2005, the Partnership entered into three interest rate 

swap agreements.  In accordance with the interest rate swap agreements, the Partnership pays interest at a 
fixed rate of 3.8% per annum, plus an applicable margin, and receives a floating rate.  The 3.8% fixed interest 
rate reflects the mark-to-market buyout of the previous interest rate swap agreement on the former credit 
facilities.  These interest rate swap agreements have a term of four years in the aggregate notional principal 
amount outstanding of $200.0 million and mature in July 2009.   

Effective April 23, 2008, the Partnership entered into three interest rate swap agreements.  Under these 
interest rate swap agreements, the Partnership will pay a fixed rate of 3.97% per annum, plus an applicable 
margin, and will receive a floating rate of interest equal to the three-month Canadian deposit offering rate set 
quarterly in advance, with gross settlements quarterly.  These interest rate swap agreements have a term of 
three years commencing in July 2009 and have an aggregate notional principal amount of $235.0 million.   

The purpose of the interest rate swap agreements is to act as a cash flow hedge of the floating interest 
rate payable under the Partnership’s Term Facility.  The Partnership considered its hedging relationships and 
determined that the interest rate swap agreements on its Term Facility qualify for hedge accounting in 
accordance with CICA Section 3865, Hedges.  The purpose of the interest rate swap agreements is to act as a 
cash flow hedge to manage the floating rate payable under the Term Facility.  Under the provisions of CICA 
Handbook Section 3865, Hedges, the interest rate swap agreements are recorded on the balance sheet at their 
fair values, with subsequent changes in fair value recorded in either net income or other comprehensive 
income.     
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 Due to Cineplex Galaxy Trust.  On November 26, 2003, the Trust entered into an agreement with GEI, a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership, whereby it loaned $100.0 million to GEI (the “Galaxy Note”).  
The Galaxy Note bears interest at a rate of 14% per annum, payable monthly with the principal due on 
November 26, 2028.  The Galaxy Note is unsecured and subordinated to the Second Amended Credit 
Facilities. 
 
Future Obligations 
 

As of September 30, 2008, the Partnership had aggregate capital commitments of $17.3 million related to 
the completion of construction of five theatre properties to include an aggregate of 47 screens.  The 
Partnership expects to complete construction and to open these theatres during 2008 through 2010.  In 
addition the Partnership has commitments for theatre retrofits of $1.7 million.  On July 22, 2008 the 
Partnership announced that it has signed a long-term agreement with RealD to install a minimum of 175 3D 
systems in its theatres by December 2009, subject to the timing of the digital cinema roll-out. As of 
September 30, 2008, the Partnership has installed 43 RealD 3D systems in its theatres.  The Partnership 
estimates that its remaining commitment, which represents the exhibitor share of the costs to install 3D 
systems under this agreement, is approximately $1.3 million. The Partnership expects the digital cinema roll-
out to begin during early 2009 and expects the majority of the costs of this rollout to be financed through a 
third party integrator.   

 
 At September 30, 2008, the Partnership had outstanding letters of credit totaling $0.9 million (2007 – 

$0.5 million). 
 
The Fund has $105.0 million principal amount of Convertible Debentures outstanding that have a 

maturity date of December 31, 2012.  At September 30, 2008, the liability component of the Convertible 
Debentures was recorded on the Fund’s balance sheet at $99.5 million (December 31, 2007 - $98.8 million).  
The Convertible Debentures are being accreted to their maturity value using the effective interest method as 
prescribed by CICA Section 3855, Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement.  On redemption or 
at the December 31, 2012 maturity date, the Fund may, at its option, on not more than 60 days’ and not less 
than 30 days’ prior notice and subject to regulatory approval, elect to satisfy its obligation to pay the 
applicable redemption price or the principal amount of the Convertible Debentures by issuing and delivering 
Fund Units. 
 
 The Partnership conducts a significant part of its operations in leased premises. The Partnership’s leases 
generally provide for minimum rent and a number of the leases also include percentage rent based primarily 
upon sales volume. The Partnership’s leases may also include escalation clauses, guarantees and certain other 
restrictions, and generally require it to pay a portion of the real estate taxes and other property operating 
expenses. Initial lease terms generally range from 15 to 20 years and contain various renewal options, 
generally in intervals of five to ten years.   
 
 During 2005, the Partnership and Famous Players sold 29 theatres to third parties, of which 24 were 
leased properties. The Partnership is guarantor under the 24 leases for the remainder of the lease term in the 
event that the purchaser of each theatre does not fulfill its obligations under the respective lease. At 
September 30, 2008, two of the disposed leased theatres have since closed, extinguishing the Partnership’s 
obligations for these properties.  
 
 During the first quarter of 2006, the Partnership entered into an agreement with a third party to divest 
seven theatres, six of which were leased properties. The Partnership is a guarantor under the six leases for the 
remainder of the lease term in the event that the purchaser of the theatres does not fulfill its obligations under 
the respective lease.  During 2007, the Partnership was notified that the guarantee provided to a landlord of 
one of the theatre properties disposed of had been triggered; this was settled for $4.5 million during the first 
quarter of 2007.   
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 During 2006, the Partnership entered into an agreement with a related party to divest its 49% share in the 
three remaining Alliance Atlantis branded theatres.  The Partnership is guarantor for its 49% share of the 
leases for the remainder of the lease term in the event that the purchaser of the Partnership’s share in the 
theatres does not fulfill its obligations under the respective lease.  One of the disposed theatres closed during 
2007, extinguishing the Partnership’s obligations for that property. 
 
 The Partnership guarantees certain advertising revenues based on attendance levels for a majority of the 
theatres disposed to third parties. 
 
 No amounts have been provided in the consolidated financial statements for guarantees for which the 
Partnership has not been notified of triggering events at September 30, 2008 in accordance with the 
transitional provisions for CICA Section 3855, Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement, the 
Partnership assessed the fair value of these guarantees to be a nominal amount.  Should the purchasers of the 
theatres fail to fulfill their lease commitment obligations, the Partnership could face a substantial financial 
burden. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The Fund and Partnership have entered into transactions with certain parties to which they are related as 
summarized below. 
 

COC charged the Partnership $0.1 million and $0.4 million for each of the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2008 and 2007 for rent for the Partnership’s head office.      
   

The Partnership performs certain management and film booking services for six joint ventures in which it 
is a partner.  During the three months ended September 30, 2008, the Partnership earned revenue in the 
amount of $0.1 million with respect to these services (2007 - $0.2 million).  During the nine months ended 
September 30, 2008, the Partnership earned revenue in the amount of $0.3 million with respect to these 
services (2007 - $0.6 million).  On December 31, 2007, the Partnership acquired the other venturer’s interest 
in one joint venture, representing a 50% interest in three theatres with 21 screens located in Quebec.  Upon 
closing, the Partnership owns 100% of the joint venture. 
 

Distributions paid by the Partnership to related parties during the three and nine months ended September 
30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows (in thousands of dollars): 

 
 Three months ended September 30,  Nine months ended September 30, 
 2008 2007  2008 2007 
      
Fund  $              10,176 $9,472  $29,389 $24,012  
Onex and its subsidiaries                   4,246                   4,053  12,409 15,371 
Other related parties                        40                        76  154 223 

 
Distributions payable by the Partnership to related parties at September 30, 2008 and 2007 were as 

follows (in thousands of dollars):   
 September 30, 
 2008 2007 
   
Fund  $               3,392 $3,157 
Onex and its subsidiaries 1,415 1,351 
Other related parties                        13 25 

 
Transactions noted above are in the normal course of business and unless otherwise noted are measured 

at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by related parties. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  The most 
significant estimates made by management in the preparation of the financial statements relate to the 
allocation of the purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in the Fund’s consolidation of the 
Partnership and the Partnership’s acquisition of other businesses, the assessment of theatre cash flows to 
identify potential asset impairments, the value of unredeemed loyalty points and of gift certificates that 
remain unutilized and in circulation for revenue recognition purposes and the film cost payable accrual.  The 
discussion on the methodology and assumptions underlying these critical accounting estimates, their effect on 
the Fund’s results of operations and financial position for the past three years ended December 31, 2007 can 
be found in the Fund’s 2007 MD&A.  Such discussions have not changed during the first nine months of 
2008. 
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
Changes in Accounting Policies 
 

In August 2008, the CICA issued EIC 171, Future Income Tax Consequences of Exchangeable Interests 
in an Income Trust or Specified Investment Flow-Through, which concludes that temporary differences 
associated with assets and liabilities attributable to exchangeable interests should not be recorded prior to the 
conversion of the exchangeable interests.  The Fund implemented EIC 171 during the three months ended 
September 30, 2008, resulting in a restatement of future income taxes and non-controlling interests for 
previously reported periods.   

 
On May 14, 2008, the Fund’s unit option plan was approved by the Fund’s unitholders.  The Fund 

accounts for unit options in accordance with the fair value based method.  The fair value of unit options is 
measured at each balance sheet date based on the market price of Fund Units and is recorded as compensation 
expense on a graded basis over the options’ vesting periods.  Forfeitures are not estimated, but recorded when 
they occur. 
 
Initial Adoption of Accounting Policies 

  
In December 2006, the CICA issued new Handbook sections: Section 1535, Capital Disclosures; Section 

3862, Financial Instruments – Disclosures; and Section 3863, Financial Instruments – Presentation, for 
annual and interim periods beginning on or after October 1, 2007.  Section 1535 establishes standards for 
disclosing information about an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.  Sections 
3862 and 3863 enhance existing disclosures in previously issued Section 3861, Financial Instruments – 
Disclosure and Presentation.  Section 3862 places greater emphasis on disclosures about risks related to 
recognized and unrecognized financial instruments and how those risks are managed.  Section 3863 carries 
forward the same presentation standards as Section 3861.  The Fund adopted these standards on January 1, 
2008.   

 
In April 2007, the CICA Accounting Standards Board amended section 1400, General Standards of 

Financial Statement Presentation.  These amendments require management to disclose any uncertainties that 
cast significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.  In assessing whether the going 
concern assumption is appropriate, management must take into account all available information about the 
future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the balance sheet date.  The Fund adopted 
this standard on January 1, 2008 on a prospective basis, and it did not affect the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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In June 2007, the CICA issued new Handbook section 3031, Inventories, which replaces CICA 3030, 
Inventories.  The new standard requires inventory to be measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value 
and requires any writedowns to be reversed if the value subsequently recovers, provides expanded guidance 
on the determination of cost, including the allocation of overhead and expanded disclosures.  The Fund 
adopted this standard on January 1, 2008 and there was no effect on the consolidated financial statements.   

 
In April 2008, the CICA issued EIC 170, Conversion of an Unincorporated Entity to an Incorporated 

Entity, which describes accounting and presentation by businesses that undergo such a conversion after the 
issuance of the EIC.  The EIC had no effect on the Fund’s consolidated financial statements for the current 
period.  

 
Future Changes in Accounting Policies 
 

Management of the Fund reviews all changes to the CICA Handbook when issued.  The following is a 
discussion of relevant items that were released, revised or will become effective after September 30, 2008: 

 
In February 2008, the CICA confirmed that International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) will be 

mandatory in Canada for profit-oriented publicly accountable entities for fiscal periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2011.  The Fund is analyzing the impact of IFRS on the consolidated financial statements.  A 
project team has been set up to manage the transition to IFRS and to ensure successful implementation within 
the required timeframe.  We will provide disclosures of the key elements of our plan and progress on the 
IFRS conversion as the information becomes available during the transition period. 

 
In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook section 3064, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, 

which replaces Handbook Sections 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and 3450, Research and 
Development Costs.  The Fund is analyzing the impact of the new standards on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 

On October 31, 2006, Finance announced the “Tax Fairness Plan” whereby the income tax rules 
applicable to certain publicly traded or listed trusts and partnerships will be significantly modified.  In 
particular, certain income of (and distributions made by) these entities or specified investment flow-through 
entities (“SIFTs”) will be taxed in a manner similar to income earned by (and distributions made by) a 
corporation.  These proposals will be effective for the 2007 taxation year with respect to trusts which 
commence public trading after October 31, 2006.  For trusts which were publicly traded or listed prior to 
November 1, 2006, the application of the rules will be delayed to the earlier of (i) the trust’s 2011 taxation 
year, and (ii) a taxation year of the trust in which the trust exceeds normal growth as determined by reference 
to the normal growth guidelines, as amended from time to time, unless that excess arose as a result of a 
prescribed transaction. 

 
On December 15, 2006, Finance released the normal growth guidelines for income trusts and other flow-

through entities that qualify for the four-year transitional relief.  The guidance establishes objective tests with 
respect to how much an income trust is permitted to grow without jeopardizing its transitional relief.  In 
general, the Fund will be permitted to issue new equity over the next four years equal to its market 
capitalization as of the end of trading on October 31, 2006 (subject to certain annual limits).  Market 
capitalization, for these purposes, is to be measured in terms of the value of the Fund’s issued and outstanding 
publicly-traded units.  If these limits are exceeded, the Fund may lose its transitional relief and thereby 
become immediately subject to the rules. 

 
On June 12, 2007 the legislation enacting Finance’s October 31, 2006 “Tax Fairness Plan” was 

substantively enacted. 
 

32



Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
 

 
CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND 
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT – MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS   

 
  

On December 20, 2007 Finance announced proposed technical amendments to clarify the tax rules that 
apply to SIFTs.  Draft legislation implementing these amendments has not been released.  One of the 
proposed amendments is intended to exempt from the SIFT rules a subsidiary partnership that carries on 
business that is not publicly traded and that is owned by a SIFT, a taxable Canadian corporation or a 
combination of these entities.  Although the Partnership is not publicly traded, the proposed amendments do 
not appear to exempt a partnership whose partners include individuals.  Management believes however that 
the Partnership will not be a SIFT in 2011. 

 
In July 2008 Finance released proposed amendments to the Tax Act to facilitate the conversion of 

existing income trusts, REITs and other public flow-through entities into corporations on a tax-deferred basis 
(the “Conversion Rules”).  The Conversion Rules fulfill Finance’s undertaking to provide existing income 
trusts with tax efficient structuring options to convert to corporate form in advance of their 2011 taxation year 
at which time most income trusts would become subject to a new entity-level tax based on corporate income 
tax rates.  Management is currently reviewing the proposed Conversion Rules to assess their impact on the 
Fund. 

 
The Fund is considering these announcements and the possible impact of the rules to the Fund.  The rules 

(including the normal growth guidelines released on December 15, 2006) may adversely affect the 
marketability of the Fund’s units and the ability of the Fund to undertake financings and acquisitions, and, at 
such time as the rules apply to the Fund, the distributable cash of the Fund may be materially reduced. 
 

The Partnership has mitigated certain risks associated with the current economic environment.  In 
reference to refinancing risk, the Partnership renegotiated its credit facilities in 2007 to extend the maturity of 
these facilities to 2012.  In reference to interest rate risk, the Partnership entered into various interest rate 
swap agreements on substantially all of its outstanding indebtedness for terms ending in 2012.  The 
Partnership’s exposure to currency and commodity risk is minimal as the majority of its transactions are 
denominated in Canadian dollars and commodity costs are not a significant component of the overall cost 
structure.   Further, based on historical trends, it has been shown that box office revenues tend to be less 
influenced by general economic conditions and more influenced by the quality of film product.  In 2007, 
media revenue represented approximately 7% of total revenue.  The current economic environment may 
impact future growth in this area. 

 
 Other risks and uncertainties for the Partnership’s business and relevant to an investment in Fund Units 

are described in the Fund’s 2007 annual MD&A dated February 6, 2008 and AIF dated March 28, 2008. 
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OUTLOOK 
 

Management believes there are opportunities to grow revenue and distributable cash per unit.  
Management also believes that its cinema advertising network which includes affiliate members and reaches 
an audience up to approximately 95 million guests annually on a national basis will continue to receive 
enhanced demand from advertisers although the current economic environment may impact future growth in 
this area.  In 2007, media revenue was $56 million or 7% of total revenue. In addition, the Partnership 
continues to realize and seek out other revenue growth opportunities which include such opportunities as 
additional media opportunities, extracting the benefits of the SCENE loyalty program, new theatre 
development, alternative programming and entertainment opportunities and web-based initiatives including e-
commerce. 

 
The Partnership believes that its’ Second Amended Credit Facilities and ongoing cash flow from 

operations will be sufficient to allow it to meet ongoing requirements for capital expenditures, investments in 
working capital and distributions.  However, the Partnership’s needs may change and in such event the 
Partnership’s ability to satisfy its obligations will be dependent upon future financial performance, which in 
turn will be subject to financial, tax, business and other factors, including elements beyond the Partnership’s 
control. 

 
 
 
November 5, 2008  
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CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT - CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,
2008

December 31,
2007

(Revised -
note 3)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,157 $ 44,254
Accounts receivable 32,060 45,322
Inventories 2,865 3,026
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8,215 4,584

66,297 97,186

Property, equipment and leaseholds 438,892 461,506

Fair value of interest rate swap agreements (note 4) - 1,523

Future income taxes (note 3) 9,801 7,707

Deferred charges 986 1,085

Intangible assets 120,924 131,603

Goodwill (note 3) 600,300 600,223

$ 1,237,200 $ 1,300,833

These interim financial statements consolidate the results of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the
“Partnership”) from April 2, 2007. Prior to that date, the results of the Partnership were accounted for by the equity
method (note 2).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,
2008

December 31,
2007

(Revised -
note 3)

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 58,286 $ 81,309
Distributions payable (note 6) 6,001 5,715
Income taxes payable 50 65
Deferred revenue 51,980 64,610
Capital lease obligations - current portion 1,669 1,581

117,986 153,280

Long-term debt 232,711 232,265

Fair value of interest rate swap agreements (note 4) 4,140 -

Capital lease obligations - long-term portion 33,568 34,831

Accrued pension benefit liability 1,234 672

Other liabilities 103,700 102,015

Convertible debentures - liability component 99,548 98,748

592,887 621,811

Non-controlling interests (notes 2 and 3) 157,849 171,554

Unitholders’ Equity (note 3) 486,464 507,468

$ 1,237,200 $ 1,300,833

These interim financial statements consolidate the results of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the
“Partnership”) from April 2, 2007. Prior to that date, the results of the Partnership were accounted for by the equity
method (note 2).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
Approved by the Board of Trustees

“Phyllis Yaffe” “Robert Steacy”
CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT - CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Trustee Trustee
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CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three
months

ended
September 30,

2008

Three
months

ended
September 30,

2007

Nine
months

ended
September 30,

2008

Nine
months

ended
September 30,

2007
(Revised -

note 3)
(Revised -

note 3)

Revenues
Box office $ 144,957 $ 150,376 $ 388,137 $ 270,442
Concessions 71,520 72,408 190,272 132,200
Other 22,626 21,072 59,859 41,155

239,103 243,856 638,268 443,797

Expenses
Film cost 76,212 80,057 202,850 143,502
Cost of concessions 14,690 14,842 40,000 27,797
Occupancy 38,541 42,366 116,525 82,276
Other operating 52,370 46,205 144,334 89,248
General and administrative 9,500 9,932 29,065 18,381

191,313 193,402 532,774 361,204

Income before undernoted 47,790 50,454 105,494 82,593

Amortization 20,840 19,990 63,307 40,059

Loss on disposal of theatre assets 228 149 1,582 368

Share of loss of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership
(note 3) - - - 4,241

Interest and accretion expense on convertible debentures 1,887 1,872 5,550 5,479

Interest on long-term debt and capital lease obligations 3,912 4,376 13,417 8,795

Interest income (223) (376) (616) (5,699)

Income before income taxes and non-controlling interests 21,146 24,443 22,254 29,350

Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
Current - - (4) 5
Future (note 3) (1,382) 4,856 (2,061) (946)

(1,382) 4,856 (2,065) (941)

Income before non-controlling interests 22,528 19,587 24,319 30,291

Non-controlling interests (note 3) 4,150 4,966 2,186 5,199

Net income $ 18,378 $ 14,621 $ 22,133 $ 25,092

Basic net income per Fund unit $ 0.43 $ 0.34 $ 0.51 $ 0.63

Weighted average number of Fund units outstanding used in
computing basic net income per Fund unit 43,081,791 43,121,958 43,096,365 40,119,774

Diluted net income per Fund unit (note 9) $ 0.39 $ 0.32 $ 0.43 $ 0.50

Weighted average number of Fund units outstanding used in
computing diluted net income per Fund unit (note 9) 56,818,261 57,032,930 56,872,321 57,071,663

These interim financial statements consolidate the results of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the
“Partnership”) from April 2, 2007. Prior to that date, the results of the Partnership were accounted for by the equity
method (note 2).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008

Accumulated
earnings

Accumulated
distributions

Accumulated
distributions

in excess of
accumulated

earnings

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)

Unitholders’
capital

Total
unitholders’

equity
Comprehensive

income
(note 7)

(Revised -
note 3)

Balance - December 31,
2007 $ 73,532 $ (137,082) $ (63,550) $ 290 $ 570,728 $ 507,468 $ -

Issuance of units under
Exchange Agreement
(note 2) - - - - 2,139 2,139 -

LTIP compensation obligation - - - - 1,845 1,845 -
LTIP Fund units - - - - (3,691) (3,691) -
Distributions declared (note 6) - (40,124) (40,124) - - (40,124) -
Net income 22,133 - 22,133 - - 22,133 22,133
Other comprehensive loss -

interest rate swap
agreements - - - (3,306) - (3,306) (3,306)

Comprehensive income - - - - - - $ 18,827

Balance - September 30,
2008 $ 95,665 $ (177,206) $ (81,541) $ (3,016) $ 571,021 $ 486,464

The sum of accumulated distributions in excess of accumulated earnings and accumulated other comprehensive loss as at September 30, 2008 is $84,557.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007

Accumulated
earnings

Accumulated
distributions

Accumulated
distributions

in excess of
accumulated

earnings

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income

Unitholders’
capital

Total
unitholders’

equity
Comprehensive

income
(note 7)

Balance - January 1, 2007 $ 42,307 $ (88,543) $ (46,236) $ 1,449 $ 428,365 $ 383,578 $ -
Issuance of units under

Exchange Agreement
(note 2) - - - - 143,136 143,136 -

LTIP compensation obligation - - - - 896 896 -
LTIP Fund units - - - - (1,802) (1,802) -
Distributions declared (note 6) - (35,567) (35,567) - - (35,567) -
Net income 25,092 - 25,092 - - 25,092 25,092
Other comprehensive loss -

interest rate swap
agreements - - - (21) - (21) (21)

Comprehensive income - - - - - - $ 25,071

Balance - September 30,
2007 $ 67,399 $ (124,110) $ (56,711) $ 1,428 $ 570,595 $ 515,312

The sum of accumulated distributions in excess of accumulated earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income as at September 30, 2007 is $55,283.

These interim financial statements consolidate the results of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the
“Partnership”) from April 2, 2007. Prior to that date, the results of the Partnership were accounted for by the equity
method (note 2).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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Three
months

ended
September 30,

2008

Three
months

ended
September 30,

2007

Nine
months

ended
September 30,

2008

Nine
months

ended
September 30,

2007
(Revised -

note 3)
(Revised -

note 3)

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities
Net income $ 18,378 $ 14,621 $ 22,133 $ 25,092
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) operating activities

Share of loss from equity investee - - - 4,241
Amortization of property, equipment and leaseholds, deferred charges and

intangible assets 20,840 19,990 63,307 40,059
Amortization of tenant inducements, rent averaging liabilities and fair

value lease contract liabilities (449) 604 (20) 2,969
Amortization of debt issuance costs 150 143 445 407
Loss on disposal of theatre assets 228 149 1,582 368
Future income taxes (1,382) 4,856 (2,061) (946)
Cash flow hedges - non-cash interest (74) (339) 1,310 (1,040)
Non-controlling interests 4,150 4,966 2,186 5,199
Accretion of convertible debentures 287 267 800 724
Distributions received from Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership - - - 6,306

Tenant inducements 736 932 3,001 3,467
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (note 10) (7,082) 5,121 (26,416) (10,340)

35,782 51,310 66,267 76,506

Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of theatre assets 54 31 2,453 33
Purchases of property, equipment and leaseholds (13,412) (5,524) (28,039) (15,004)
Acquisition of Cinema City theatre assets (note 13) - (6,193) - (6,193)
Theatre shutdown payment (450) - (750) -
Acquisition of Famous branded magazines - - (387) -
Cash acquired on the acquisition of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership

(note 2) - - - 27,504

(13,808) (11,686) (26,723) 6,340

Financing activities
Distributions paid (13,676) (12,973) (39,889) (34,512)
Distributions paid by the Partnership to non-controlling interests (4,327) (4,173) (12,690) (9,103)
Borrowings under credit facility 3,000 14,000 13,000 31,000
Repayment of credit facility (3,000) (42,000) (13,000) (54,000)
Acquisition of LTIP Fund units - - (6,887) -
Payments under capital leases (399) (371) (1,175) (735)
Deferred financing fees - (578) - (578)

(18,402) (46,095) (60,641) (67,928)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period 3,572 (6,471) (21,097) 14,918

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of period 19,585 22,659 44,254 1,270

Cash and cash equivalents - End of period $ 23,157 $ 16,188 $ 23,157 $ 16,188

Supplemental information
Cash received for interest $ 217 $ 376 $ 595 $ 4,123
Cash paid for interest 3,194 4,304 13,117 12,066
Cash paid for income taxes - net - - 15 5

Certain non-cash transactions occurred relating to exchanges of the non-controlling interests’ Partnership units for
Fund units (note 2).

These interim financial statements consolidate the results of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the
“Partnership”) from April 2, 2007. Prior to that date, the results of the Partnership were accounted for by the equity
method (note 2).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim consolidated financial statements.
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1 Description of the Fund

Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund (the “Fund”) is an unincorporated, open-ended, limited purpose trust established
under the laws of the Province of Ontario on October 2, 2003, pursuant to the Fund Declaration of Trust. The
Fund was established to invest, through Cineplex Galaxy Trust (the “Trust”), a newly constituted wholly owned
trust, in partnership units of Cineplex Entertainment Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”) and shares of
Cineplex Entertainment Corporation (the “General Partner”), the general partner of the Partnership. The
Partnership was formed on November 26, 2003 to acquire substantially all of the theatre business assets and
liabilities of Cineplex Odeon Corporation (“COC”) and all of the shares of Galaxy Entertainment Inc. (“GEI”).
As at September 30, 2008, the Fund indirectly owns 76.0% of the Partnership. Non-controlling investors of the
Partnership include COC, Cineplex Odeon (Quebec) Inc., Onex Corporation (“Onex”) and other former
investors in GEI. In 2005, the Partnership acquired 100% of Famous Players Limited Partnership (“Famous
Players”) and its general partner, Famous Players Co. The Fund is currently Canada’s largest film exhibition
organization, with theatres in six provinces.

2 Acquisition of control and consolidation of the Partnership

As a result of the various step acquisitions that took place prior to December 31, 2006, the Fund’s indirect
ownership of the Partnership, held through the Trust, was approximately 59.7% as at April 1, 2007. These step
acquisitions were a result of subscriptions of Partnership units as well as exchanges of Fund units for
Partnership units, indirectly through the Trust, on a one-for-one basis.

On April 2, 2007, under the provisions of the Exchange Agreement, COC exchanged 9,122,751 Partnership
units for 9,122,751 Fund units. The Fund recorded the Partnership units it acquired at the fair value of the Fund
units, which was $143,136 on the date of the transaction.

Prior to the April 2, 2007 step acquisition, the Fund accounted for its ownership interest in the Partnership
under the equity method. As a result of the April 2, 2007 exchange, the Fund indirectly acquired an additional
16.0% interest in the Partnership, increasing its ownership to 75.7%. The acquisition of the additional interest
in the Partnership is accounted for as a step acquisition as at April 2, 2007 for the purpose of purchase price
allocation and the assigning of costs to identifiable assets and liabilities, intangible assets and goodwill.

As a result of all of the Fund’s step acquisitions in the Partnership (collectively, the “Step Acquisitions”), the
Fund acquired control of the Partnership and applied consolidation accounting effective April 2, 2007. The Step
Acquisitions have been accounted for by the purchase method, with the non-controlling interests accounted for
in accordance with The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ (the “CICA”) recommendations in
Emerging Issues Committee 151, Exchangeable Securities Issued by Subsidiaries of Income Trusts (“EIC-
151”); accordingly, the results of operations of the Partnership have been included in these consolidated
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financial statements, effective with the change in control on April 2, 2007. Based on management’s best
estimates, the cumulative purchase price has been allocated to the assets and liabilities of the Partnership as
follows:

Assets and liabilities acquired
Property, equipment and leaseholds $ 485,450
Advertising contracts - amortized over three to five years 54,967
Trademarks and trade names - indefinite useful lives 76,385
Goodwill (revised from $597,925) (note 3) 597,173
Fair value of interest rate swap agreements 2,121
Fair value of leases - assets 10,216
Future income taxes (revised from $3,094) (note 3) (2,342)
Other assets 1,185
Net working capital deficiency (including cash of $27,504) (39,576)
Bank indebtedness (5,000)
Long-term debt (250,280)
Net pension liability (2,513)
Other liabilities (91,071)
Capital leases (37,539)
Non-controlling interests (181,172)

Net assets $ 618,004

Consideration given
Prior investments in Partnership, net of Fund’s share of

accumulated Partnership income and distributions $ 265,914
Investment in Partnership on April 2, 2007 143,136
Due from Galaxy Entertainment Inc. 100,000
Investment in Class C Limited Partnership units 105,000
Distributions and interest receivable from Partnership 3,678

617,728
Transaction costs associated with the acquisition 276

$ 618,004

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2008, the purchase price allocation was finalized. The only
change from the allocation disclosed in the 2007 annual consolidated financial statements was an increase to
transaction costs and goodwill of $76, respectively.

Prior to the Fund’s Step Acquisitions of the Partnership, the Fund and the Partnership entered into a
reimbursement agreement under which fees associated with the acquisitions were reimbursed by the
Partnership. Therefore, certain transaction costs are included in the acquired net assets of the Partnership.
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The Partnership is currently not subject to income or capital taxes, as income, if any, is taxed in the hands of the
individual partners. As at the date of the step acquisition, the amount of goodwill that is deductible by the Fund
for income tax purposes was estimated to be $209,000.

Non-controlling interests - exchangeable units

Outstanding Partnership units (“exchangeable units”) are indirectly exchangeable one-for-one for Fund units in
the manner set out in the Exchange Agreement. As a result of the Step Acquisitions and the Fund’s acquiring
control of the Partnership, exchangeable units are accounted for in accordance with EIC-151.

EIC-151 provides guidance on how the exchangeable units, classified as non-controlling interests, should be
measured. When the Fund acquired the Partnership, it met the criteria for use of the exchange amount. The
Fund’s acquisition of the Partnership was accomplished by Step Acquisitions since the inception of the
Partnership; therefore, the April 2, 2007 exchange amount used to initially record the non-controlling interests
is the weighted average of the fair value of the Fund’s Step Acquisitions of the Partnership. Since the
exchangeable units are presented as non-controlling interests in these interim consolidated financial statements
and were recorded at the exchange amount, any subsequent exchange after April 2, 2007 is accounted for as a
rollover to unitholders’ equity at that same value.

In March 2008, 174,502 Partnership units were exchanged for 174,502 Fund units and $2,139 was reclassified
from non-controlling interests to unitholders’ capital. The Fund’s indirect ownership of the Partnership
increased 0.3% to 76.0% as a result of these exchanges.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The Fund prepares its unaudited interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The disclosures contained in these unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements do not contain all requirements of GAAP for annual consolidated financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

Prior to April 2, 2007, the Fund accounted for its investment in the Partnership by the equity method. The
Fund’s share of the Partnership’s loss prior to the Fund’s acquisition of control and subsequent consolidation of
the Partnership was $4,241 for the three months ended March 31, 2007. Therefore, due to the limited amount of
information these interim consolidated financial statements provide on the underlying operations of the Fund
prior to April 2, 2007, these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Fund for the three months ended March 31,
2007, which include the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Partnership.
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The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements follow the same accounting policies and methods of
application as the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007, except as
described in the remainder of this note.

Revision to prior periods’ financial statements

In August 2008, the CICA issued EIC-171, Future Income Tax Consequences of Exchangeable Interests in an
Income Trust or Specified Investment Flow-Through, which concludes that temporary differences associated
with assets and liabilities attributable to exchangeable interests should not be recorded prior to the conversion
of the exchangeable interests. The conversion of an exchangeable interest is a capital transaction, and the future
income taxes recognized on the exchanged interests should be charged or credited to equity at that time.

In accordance with then-applicable GAAP, the Fund previously had recorded the future income taxes based on
all temporary differences of its assets and liabilities, including those attributable to the exchangeable interests.
The balance of the temporary differences associated with assets and liabilities attributable to exchangeable
interests was previously reflected in non-controlling interests on the balance sheets.

EIC-171 requires retrospective application to the period ended June 30, 2007, the period during which income
tax proposals pertaining to the taxation of the Fund became substantially enacted. In addition to the effect on
future income taxes and non-controlling interests relating to the de-recognition of the temporary differences
attributable to the exchangeable interests, goodwill and future income taxes have been revised to reflect the
adjusted fair value associated with the April 2, 2007 exchange of Partnership units for Fund units (note 2), as
impacted by EIC-171. Unitholders’ capital has been revised to reflect the adjusted balance of non-controlling
interests that was reclassified to unitholders’ capital on the March 2008 exchange of Partnership units. Net
income was not affected by the retrospective application of EIC-171.
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The following are the effects of the revision on previously reported periods:

Consolidated balance sheets

June 30,
2007

September 30,
2007

December 31,
2007

March 31,
2008

June 30,
2008

Future income taxes -
previously reported $ 14,297 $ 7,879 $ 10,188 $ 8,166 $ 11,083

Adjustment (1,115) 447 (2,481) (1,964) (2,665)

Future income taxes - revised $ 13,182 $ 8,326 $ 7,707 $ 6,202 $ 8,418

Goodwill - previously reported $ 595,548 $ 599,644 $ 600,975 $ 601,035 $ 601,052
Adjustment (752) (752) (752) (752) (752)

Goodwill - revised $ 594,796 $ 598,892 $ 600,223 $ 600,283 $ 600,300

Non-controlling interests -
previously reported $ 180,290 $ 179,065 $ 174,787 $ 165,622 $ 162,394

Adjustment (1,867) (305) (3,233) (2,709) (3,410)

Non-controlling interests -
revised $ 178,423 $ 178,760 $ 171,554 $ 162,913 $ 158,984

Unitholders’ capital -
previously reported $ 570,467 $ 570,595 $ 570,728 $ 570,267 $ 570,647

Adjustment - - - (7) (7)

Unitholders’ capital - revised $ 570,467 $ 570,595 $ 570,728 $ 570,260 $ 570,640
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Consolidated statements of operations - quarterly

Three
months

ended
June 30,

2007

Three
months

ended
September 30,

2007

Three
months

ended
December 31,

2007

Three
months

ended
March 31,

2008

Three
months

ended
June 30,

2008

Provision for (recovery of)
future income taxes -
previously reported $ (7,669) $ 6,418 $ (12,030) $ 2,023 $ (2,917)

Adjustment 1,867 (1,562) 2,928 (486) 701

Provision for (recovery of)
future income taxes -
revised $ (5,802) $ 4,856 $ (9,102) $ 1,537 $ (2,216)

Non-controlling interests -
previously reported $ 2,100 $ 3,404 $ 259 $ (2,218) $ 469

Adjustment (1,867) 1,562 (2,928) 486 (701)

Non-controlling interests -
revised $ 233 $ 4,966 $ (2,669) $ (1,732) $ (232)

Consolidated statements of operations - year-to-date

Six
months

ended
June 30,

2007

Nine
months

ended
September 30,

2007

Year
ended

December 31,
2007

Three
months

ended
March 31,

2008

Six
months

ended
June 30,

2008

Provision for (recovery of)
future income taxes -
previously reported $ (7,669) $ (1,251) $ (13,281) $ 2,023 $ (894)

Adjustment 1,867 305 3,233 (486) 215

Provision for (recovery of)
future income taxes -
revised $ (5,802) $ (946) $ (10,048) $ 1,537 $ (679)

Non-controlling interests -
previously reported $ 2,100 $ 5,504 $ 5,763 $ (2,218) $ (1,749)

Adjustment (1,867) (305) (3,233) 486 (215)

Non-controlling interests -
revised $ 233 $ 5,199 $ 2,530 $ (1,732) $ (1,964)
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Changes in accounting policies

Unit-based compensation

The Fund accounts for unit options in accordance with the fair value based method. The fair value of unit
options that will be settled in cash is measured at each balance sheet date based on the market price of Fund
units and is recorded as compensation expense on a graded basis over the options’ vesting periods. Forfeitures
are not estimated, but recorded when they occur. The Fund unit options are disclosed in note 8.

Capital disclosures

In December 2006, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures. This section establishes
standards for disclosing information about an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
This standard is effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years commencing on or
after October 1, 2007 on a prospective basis. The Fund adopted this new standard effective January 1, 2008.
Capital disclosures are described in note 5.

Financial instruments - disclosure and presentation

In December 2006, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures, and
Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation. These standards enhance existing disclosures in previously
issued Section 3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation. Section 3862 places greater
emphasis on disclosures about risks related to recognized and unrecognized financial instruments and how
those risks are managed. Section 3863 carries forward the same presentation standards as Section 3861. These
new standards are effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years commencing on
or after October 1, 2007 on a prospective basis. The Fund adopted these new standards effective January 1,
2008. Additional disclosures required by Section 3862 are provided in note 4.

Financial statement presentation

In April 2007, the CICA Accounting Standards Board amended CICA Handbook Section 1400, General
Standards of Financial Statement Presentation. These amendments require management to disclose any
uncertainties that cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. In assessing
whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, management must take into account all available
information about the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, 12 months from the balance sheet date. This
standard was adopted on January 1, 2008 on a prospective basis and did not affect the consolidated financial
statements.

Inventories

In June 2007, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3031, Inventories, which replaces CICA Handbook
Section 3030, Inventories. The standard requires inventory to be measured at the lower of cost or net realizable
value and requires any writedowns to be reversed if the value subsequently recovers, provides expanded
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guidance on the determination of cost, including the allocation of certain overhead costs, and expands
disclosures. There was no effect on the consolidated financial statements when the new standard was adopted
on January 1, 2008.

Future changes in accounting standards

The Fund reviews all changes to the CICA Handbook when issued. The following is a discussion of relevant
items that were released, revised or will become effective after September 30, 2008:

Conversion to an incorporated entity

In April 2008, the CICA issued EIC-170, Conversion of an Unincorporated Entity to an Incorporated Entity,
which describes accounting and presentation by businesses that undergo such a conversion after the issuance of
EIC-170. EIC-170 had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the current period.

International Financial Reporting Standards

In February 2008, the CICA confirmed that International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) will be
mandatory in Canada for profit-oriented publicly accountable entities for fiscal periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2011. The Fund is analyzing the impact of the standards on its consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which
replaces Handbook Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and Section 3450, Research and
Development Costs. The new standard is not expected to have any effect on the Fund’s consolidated financial
statements when adopted on October 1, 2008.

4 Financial instruments

The Fund designates and accounts for financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with CICA
Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement. The Fund classifies its
applicable financial assets and financial liabilities as follows:

 held-for-trading: cash and cash equivalents;
 loans and receivables: accounts receivable;
 other liabilities: distributions payable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, bank indebtedness, long-

term debt and the liability component of convertible debentures; and
 cash flow hedges: interest rate swap agreements.
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Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, and distributions payable are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements at carrying values that approximate fair values because of the short-term
maturities of these financial instruments.

The long-term debt has a fair value approximately equal to its face value of $235,000, due to its market rate of
interest.

The convertible debentures are publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange and are recorded at amortized
cost. Based on the published trading prices, management estimates that the convertible debentures have a fair
value of $96,858 as at September 30, 2008 (December 31, 2007 - $104,995).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligation. Management believes the credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is low
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Accounts receivable include trade and other receivables. Trade receivables are amounts billed to customers for
the sales of goods and services. Other receivables include amounts due from suppliers, landlords, municipal tax
authorities and other miscellaneous amounts. The Fund’s credit risk is primarily related to its trade receivables,
as other receivables generally are recoverable through ongoing business relationships with the counterparties.

The Fund grants credit to customers in the normal course of business. The Fund typically does not require
collateral or other security from customers; however, credit evaluations are performed prior to the initial
granting of credit when warranted and periodically thereafter. Based on historical experience, the Fund records
a reserve for estimated uncollectible amounts, which management believes reduces credit risk. Management
assesses the adequacy of the reserve quarterly, taking into account historical experience, current collection
trends, the age of receivables, and when warranted and available, the financial condition of specific
counterparties. Management focuses on trade receivables outstanding for more than 120 days in assessing the
Fund’s credit risk and records a reserve when required to mitigate that risk. When collection efforts have been
exhausted, specific balances are written off.

The Fund’s trade receivables had a carrying value of $23,518 as at September 30, 2008, representing the
maximum exposure to credit risk of those financial assets, exclusive of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Normal credit terms for amounts due from customers call for payment within 30 to 45 days. Approximately
29% of trade receivables were past due as at September 30, 2008. Approximately 8% of trade receivables were
outstanding for more than 120 days.
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The following schedule reflects the changes in the allowance for trade receivables during the period:

Three months
ended

September 30,
2008

Nine months
ended

September 30,
2008

Allowance for trade receivables - Beginning of period $ 660 $ 734
Allowance recorded against current period’s sales 117 436
Adjustment based on collection experience 132 (3)
Amounts written off (164) (422)

Allowance for trade receivables - End of period $ 745 $ 745

Due to the Fund’s diversified client base, management believes the Fund does not have a significant
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financial liabilities.

The table below reflects the contractual maturity of the Fund’s undiscounted cash flows for its financial
liabilities and interest rate swap agreements:

Payments due by period

Contractual obligations Total
Within
1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years

After
5 years

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses $ 58,286 $ 58,286 $ - $ - $ -

Interest rate swap agreements 35,589 7,600 18,659 9,330 -
Long-term debt 235,000 - - 235,000 -
Capital leases 53,197 4,186 8,734 8,880 31,397

Total contractual obligations $ 382,072 $ 70,072 $ 27,393 $ 253,210 $ 31,397

The Fund also has significant contractual obligations in the form of operating leases and new theatre capital
commitments, as well as contingent obligations in the form of letters of credit, guarantees and long-term
incentive and option plans.

The Fund expects to fund lease commitments through cash flows from operations. New theatre capital
commitments not funded through cash flows from operations will be funded through the Fund’s committed
revolving credit facility.
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Management believes the Fund’s cash flows from operations and revolving credit facility will be adequate to
support all of its financial liabilities.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of the changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Substantially all of the Fund’s revenues are in Canadian dollars, as are all but an insignificant portion of
expenses, which are denominated in US dollars. Management considers currency risk to be low and does not
hedge its currency risk. As variations in foreign currency exchange rates are not expected to have a significant
impact on the results of operations, a sensitivity analysis is not presented.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund is exposed to interest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents and long-term debt, which earn and
bear interest at floating rates.

The Fund has entered into interest rate swap contracts, maturing in July 2009, to effectively fix the interest rate
on $200,000 of the long-term debt, reducing the exposure to interest rate changes. These interest rate swap
contracts have a fair value of approximately $1,155 as at September 30, 2008. The interest rate risks on cash
and cash equivalents are not hedged.

During the three months ended June 30, 2008, the Fund entered into three future interest rate swap agreements.
Under these interest rate swap agreements, the Fund will pay a fixed rate of 3.97% per annum, plus an
applicable margin, and will receive a floating rate of interest equal to the three-month Canadian deposit
offering rate set quarterly in advance, with gross settlements quarterly. The interest rate swap agreements have
a term of three years, commencing in July 2009 and maturing in July 2012, and an aggregate notional principal
amount of $235,000. The purpose of the interest rate swap agreements is to act as a cash flow hedge against the
floating interest rate payable under the Fund’s term facility. These interest rate swap contracts have a fair value
of approximately $2,985 as at September 30, 2008. The Fund considered its hedging relationships and
determined that the interest rate swap agreements on its term facility qualify for hedge accounting in
accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3865, Hedges.

Interest expense on the long-term debt is adjusted to include the payments made or received under the interest
rate swap agreements. The interest rate swap agreements are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at
their estimated fair value. The effective portion of the change in fair value of the interest rate swap agreements
is recognized in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) until the hedged interest payment is recorded, while the
ineffective portion is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as interest expense when incurred.
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Fund recorded a non-cash interest expense
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reduction of $74 and a non-cash interest expense of $1,310, respectively, relating to the cash flow hedge
(2007 - non-cash interest expense reductions of $339 and $1,040, respectively).

The following table shows the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk and the pre-tax effects on net income and
OCI for the three months ended September 30, 2008 of a 1% change in interest rates management believes is
reasonably possible:

Effect on pre-tax net income and OCI - increase (decrease)

1% decrease
in interest rates

1% increase
in interest rates

Carrying
amount of

liability
Net

income OCI
Net

income OCI

Long-term debt $ (232,711) $ 588 $ 588 $ (588) $ (588)
Interest rate swap agreements,

net (4,140) (500) (8,690) 500 8,343

The following table shows the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk and the pre-tax effects on net income and
OCI for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 of a 1% change in interest rates management believes is
reasonably possible:

Effect on pre-tax net income and OCI - increase (decrease)

1% decrease
in interest rates

1% increase
in interest rates

Carrying
amount of

liability
Net

income OCI
Net

income OCI

Long-term debt $ (232,711) $ 1,763 $ 1,763 $ (1,763) $ (1,763)
Interest rate swap agreements,

net (4,140) (1,500) (9,690) 1,500 9,343

The fair value effects on the interest rate swap agreements are based on outputs from a derivative valuation
model, which utilizes spot and forward interest rates and discounted cash flow analysis.

5 Capital disclosures

The Fund’s objectives when managing capital are to:

a) maintain financial flexibility to preserve its ability to meet financial obligations and growth objectives,
including future investments;
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b) deploy capital to provide an appropriate investment return to its unitholders; and
c) maintain a capital structure that allows multiple financing options to the Fund should a financing need

arise.

The Fund defines its capital as follows:

a) unitholders’ equity and non-controlling interests;
b) long-term debt and capital leases, including the current portion;
c) convertible debentures; and
d) cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments.

It is the Fund’s policy to distribute annually to unitholders available cash from operations after cash required
for maintenance capital expenditures, working capital and other reserves at the discretion of the Trustees.

The Fund is subject to certain covenants on the Partnership’s credit facilities agreement, which defines certain
non-GAAP terms and measures. The Partnership’s total leverage ratio may not exceed 3.00 to 1 unless an
acquisition is undertaken, in which case, the ratio allowance increases to 3.50 to 1 for a 12-month period before
reverting automatically to 3.00 to 1. The total leverage ratio is determined by dividing total debt at the period-
end (as defined in the credit agreement) by the adjusted earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”) (as defined in the credit agreement) for the past four quarters. The Partnership also
must maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of greater than 1.25 to 1. The fixed charge coverage ratio (as
defined in the credit agreement) is computed by dividing the sum of adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the credit
agreement) and rent expense for the past four quarters by fixed charges for the same period. Fixed charges
include interest expense, scheduled debt repayments, maintenance capital expenditures, rent expense and
income taxes paid in the period. Management reviews the Fund’s covenants on a quarterly basis in conjunction
with filing requirements under its credit agreement but also maintains a rolling projection to assess future
growth capital commitments. The Fund has complied with all covenant requirements during the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007. Management also monitors the Partnership’s annualized payout
ratio, calculated as distributions declared divided by distributable cash. All of these ratios are managed with
certain target ranges determined by management to allow for flexibility in considering growth opportunities.

The basis for the Fund’s capital structure is dependent on the Fund’s expected growth and changes in the
business and regulatory environments. To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Fund may purchase units
for holding or cancellation, issue new units, raise debt or refinance existing debt with different characteristics.

While objectives and strategies are reviewed periodically, the Fund’s capital and objectives in managing capital
have remained substantially unchanged over the past two completed fiscal years. Management is currently
reviewing the capital structure of the Fund in response to the Fund’s income being subject to income taxes at
the trust level effective January 1, 2011.
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6 Distributions payable

The Fund has declared the following distributions during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007

Amount
Amount
per unit Amount

Amount
per unit

January $ 4,324 $ 0.1000 $ 3,268 $ 0.0958
February 4,324 0.1000 3,268 0.0958
March 4,341 0.1000 3,268 0.0958
April 4,341 0.1000 4,142 0.0958
May 4,558 0.1050 4,324 0.1000
June 4,558 0.1050 4,324 0.1000
July 4,558 0.1050 4,324 0.1000
August 4,558 0.1050 4,324 0.1000
September 4,558 0.1050 4,324 0.1000

The distributions are paid within 30 days following the end of each month. Distributions paid are at the
discretion of the Board of Trustees of the Fund. In addition to the above, the Partnership has amounts payable
as at September 30, 2008 to the non-controlling interests of $1,443 (2007 - $1,391).

7 Unitholders’ capital

Unitholders’ capital as at September 30 and transactions during the period are as follows:

Nine months ended
September 30, 2008

Nine months ended
September 30, 2007

Number of
units Amount

Number of
units Amount

Opening balance - Beginning of
period

Fund units 43,239,715 $ 562,960 34,116,698 $ 419,819
Convertible debentures - equity

component - 8,546 - 8,546
LTIP compensation obligation - 1,024 - -
LTIP Fund units (117,491) (1,802) - -

43,122,224 570,728 34,116,698 428,365

53



Cineplex Galaxy Income Fund
Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
September 30, 2008

(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per unit amounts)

CINEPLEX GALAXY INCOME FUND
2008 THIRD QUARTER REPORT - NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nine months ended
September 30, 2008

Nine months ended
September 30, 2007

Number of
units Amount

Number of
units Amount

Transactions during the period
Issuance of Fund units under the

Exchange Agreement (note 2) 174,502 $ 2,139 9,122,751 $ 143,136
LTIP compensation obligation, net

of vested Fund units - 1,845 - 896
Purchase of LTIP Fund units (410,949) (6,887) (117,491) (1,802)
Settlement of LTIP obligation

through transfer of Fund units
to LTIP participants 196,014 3,196 - -

(40,433) 293 9,005,260 142,230

Closing balance - End of period
Fund units 43,414,217 565,099 43,239,449 562,955
Convertible debentures - equity

component - 8,546 - 8,546
LTIP compensation obligation - 2,869 - 896
LTIP Fund units (332,426) (5,493) (117,491) (1,802)

43,081,791 $ 571,021 43,121,958 $ 570,595

8 Unit-based compensation

Unit option plan

The Fund has an incentive unit option plan (the “Plan”) for certain employees of the Partnership. The aggregate
number of Fund units that may be issued under the Plan is limited to 4,500,000. Options issued under the Plan
vest at the rate of one third on each of the three subsequent anniversaries of the grant date. All of the options
must be exercised over specified periods not to exceed five years from the date granted. The options may be
exercised in one of three ways, at the optionee’s election: by purchasing from treasury the Fund units for the
exercise price; by surrendering the options and receiving cash equal to the difference between the current
market price of the Fund units on the date of surrender and the exercise price for the Fund units underlying the
options surrendered; or by surrendering the options and receiving the number of Fund units from treasury
computed by dividing the difference between the current market price of the Fund units on the date of surrender
and the exercise price for the Fund units underlying the options surrendered by the market price at the date of
surrender. The Fund has the overriding right to substitute Fund units issued from treasury where an optionee
has elected cash.
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On February 12, 2008, 1,250,000 unit options with an exercise price equal to the market price of $17.03 were
granted to 21 employees. The options vest one third on each of the successive anniversaries of the grant date,
and expire five years after the grant date if unexercised. No options became exercisable or were forfeited during
the period.

The Fund anticipates that optionholders will exercise, and that the administrators of the Plan will settle, the
options for cash. The Fund, therefore, accounts for options issued under the Plan as cash-settled liabilities. The
options are recorded at fair value at each balance sheet date, based on the market price of Fund units in excess
of the exercise price, taking into the account the options vested on a graded schedule. Forfeitures are recorded
as they occur.

From May 14, 2008, the date of approval of the Plan by the Fund’s unitholders, through September 30, 2008,
no compensation expense or liability was recorded, as the average market price of Fund units did not exceed
the exercise throughout the period.

A summary of option activities in 2008 is as follows:

Weighted
average

remaining
contractual
life (years)

Number of
underlying
Fund units

Weighted
average

exercise price

Options outstanding, January 1, 2008 - - $ -
Granted 4.37 1,250,000 17.03
Cancelled - - -
Exercised - - -

Options outstanding, September 30, 2008 4.37 1,250,000 17.03

Long-term incentive plan

Long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) costs are estimated at the grant date based on expected performance results,
and recognized on a graded basis over the vesting period. The effects of changes in estimates of performance
results are recognized in the period of change. Forfeitures are recognized as they occur as a reduction to
compensation expense. The LTIP compensation is recorded as an accrued liability until the corresponding LTIP
pool of funds is utilized to acquire Fund units, at which point the liability is reclassified to unit capital, as the
Fund is obligated to deliver a fixed number of Fund units, the value of which will vary with the fair value of the
Fund units. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the Fund units are not recognized. For the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2008, the Fund recognized $1,657 and $4,965, respectively (2007 - $2,385 and
$3,071, respectively).

The Fund accounts for its investment in Fund units relating to the LTIP as treasury stock, reducing unitholders’
capital.
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9 Diluted net income per Fund unit

The weighted average number of Fund units outstanding used in computing the diluted net income per Fund
unit includes the dilutive effect of the full exercise of the non-controlling interest unitholders’ right to exchange
their Partnership units for Fund units. Options granted in 2008 to acquire 1,250,000 Fund units were excluded
from the computation of diluted net income per Fund unit, as their effect would have been antidilutive.
Convertible debentures in the amount of $104,995 were excluded from the computation of diluted net income
per Fund unit, as their effect would have been antidilutive. The $104,995 convertible debentures can be
converted into 5,599,734 Fund units at the option of the holders. If converted, the weighted average number of
Fund units outstanding used in computing diluted net income per Fund unit would be 5,599,734 Fund units
higher (2007 - 5,600,000). LTIP Fund units held by the Fund decrease the weighted average number of Fund
units outstanding for both the basic and diluted net income per Fund unit calculation.

The following Partnership units have not been exchanged for Fund units as at September 30:

Number of units

2008 2007

Class B, Series 1 626,589 626,589
Class B, Series 2-G 1,733,762 1,779,264
Class D - 129,000
CELP 2007 LP Units 11,376,119 11,376,119

13,736,470 13,910,972
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10 Interim consolidated statements of cash flows

The following summarizes the changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Three months ended
September 30,

Nine months ended
September 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007

Accounts receivable $ 3,858 $ (2,906) $ 11,559 $ (7,983)
Inventories 439 638 161 5
Prepaid expenses and other current

assets 1,600 1,778 3,256 (1,115)
Income taxes payable - 88 (15) 80
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses (11,455) 9,731 (26,782) 7,471
Due to related parties - (1,116) - (2,958)
Deferred revenue (848) (3,921) (12,630) (5,620)
Accrued pension benefit liability 194 (366) 563 (1,014)
Other liabilities (870) 1,195 (2,528) 794

$ (7,082) $ 5,121 $ (26,416) $ (10,340)

Non-cash investing activities
Property, equipment and

leasehold purchases
financed through accrued
expenses $ 907 $ 1,775 $ 907 $ 1,775

11 Seasonal fluctuations

The Fund’s revenues are primarily dependent on the timing of film releases by distributors. The most
marketable films are usually released during the summer and year-end holiday seasons. Consequently, the
results of operations and cash flows for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full year. Although film studios and distributors have expanded the historical summer and
year-end holiday release windows and increased the number of heavily marketed films released during
traditionally lower-attendance periods, the Fund’s results of operations may vary significantly from quarter to
quarter.

12 Segment information

The Fund has determined that the theatre exhibition industry qualifies as a single business segment, with all of
its revenue and assets generated and held within Canada.
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13 Cinema City acquisition

On July 13, 2007, the Fund acquired Cinema City branded theatres located in Winnipeg, Manitoba and
Edmonton, Alberta. The Fund paid consideration in the amount of $6,193, before transaction costs. The
acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method; accordingly, the results of operations of the
business acquired have been included in these consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date,
whereby, the purchase price is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired, based on their estimated fair
values. The final allocation of the purchase price has been allocated as follows:

Assets acquired
Net working capital $ 124
Trade name 370
Property, equipment and leaseholds 2,017
Goodwill 3,813

Net assets 6,324
Less: Cash from the acquisition 31

$ 6,293

Consideration given
Cash paid for acquisition $ 6,224
Less: Cash from the acquisition 31

6,193
Transaction costs associated with the acquisition 100

$ 6,293

The amount of goodwill arising from this transaction that is deductible for tax purposes is estimated to be
$3,000.

14 Non-monetary transactions

The Fund occasionally enters into non-monetary arrangements with other parties to exchange goods or services.
During the three months ended September 30, 2008, the Fund provided advertising and media services to third
parties, and recognized advertising revenues of $1,079 ($1,079 year-to-date). The Fund received sponsorship
and advertising services in exchange, recording marketing expenses of $1,031 ($1,490 year-to-date). The
difference will be recognized as marketing expenses as the other parties’ services are provided in future
periods. The exchanges were measured at the value of the services provided by the Fund, by reference to
similar services provided by the Fund for monetary consideration to arm’s-length third parties other than those
with whom the transactions were entered into. Non-monetary arrangements in 2007 were not significant.
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